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I, the Chairman of the Public Accounts Committee. as authorised by 
the Committee, do present on their behalf this Eighty-first R ~ p o r t  of the 
Public Accounts Committee (Sixth Lok Sabha) on parapaphs 9 and 11 
of the Report of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the 
year 1975-76, Union Government (Defence Services). 

2. The Report of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India for 
the year 1.975-76, Union Government (Defence Services) was laid on the 
Table of :he House on 2nd July, 1977. The Public Accounts Committee 

(1977-78) examined these paragraphs at their sittings held on 24 
February. 1978 (AN) and 25 February 1978 (FN). This Report was 
considered and finalised at their sitting held on 25 April, 1978 (AN) based 
on the evidence taken and further written information furnished by the 
Ministry of Defence (Department of Dcfence Production). The Minutes 
of the sittings form Part II* of thc Report. 

3. A statement containin conclusions/recommendations of the Com- 
mittee is appended to this Report. For facility of reference these have 
been printed in thick typc in the body of the Report. 

4. The Committee place on rccord their appreciation of the assistance 
rendend to them in the examination of the Audit Repart by the Comptrol- 
ler and Auditor General of India. 

5. The Committee would also like to cxpress their thanks to the 
officers of the Ministry of Defence (Department of Defence Production) 
for the cooperation extcndcd hy them in giving information to the 
Committee. 

NEW DELHI; 
April 26, 1978 
Gaisakha 6, 1900 (S) 

C .  M. STEPHEN, 
Chnirran, 

Public ilccounts Co,r?nzlttee. 

*Not printed. (One cyclostylcd copy laid on the Table of thc House and five copies 
placed in the Parliament Library). 
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REPORT 
EXPORT OF DEFENCE STORES 

A udit paragraph 

1.1. With a view to utilise spare capacity in the ordnance factories and 
to earn fbreign exchange, the Ministry of Defence decided to promote the 
export of some specific items of equipment and stores on a commercial 
basis. Accordingly, in February, 1973, a special cell was set up in the 
Ministry of Defence (Department of Defence Production) to handle the 
export orders. 

1.2.While no formal procedures were laid down for dealing with such 
transactions until July, 1975, in September, 1973, in a high level meeting 

in the Ministry of Defence it was decided that: 

-while agents could be appointed to explore the market, the final 
&als would be on a Government-to-Govemment basis, and 
stores in all cases despatched direct to the Government 
c o ~ c e m d ;  

, -agents' commission upto 5 per cent of the f.o.;b. price could be 
paid without the concurrence of the (Ministry of Finance 
(Economic Affairs Department); commission beyond 5 per 
cent would require specific approval of the Ministry of 
Finance. 

1.3. For transactions negotiated through agents, an 'end user certificate' 
was normally insisted upon. (The 'end user certificate' is a written affir- 
mlation from the foreign Government that the stores are intended for its 
iown exclusive use and would not be sold, transferred or diverted witbut 
the seller's prior permission.) Such certificates are verified to ensure that 
they are genuine and authentic. 

1.4. On an enquiry received in June, 1975 from an Indian firm for the 
expert of certain equipment, the Ministry of Defence quoted a price of 
Rs. 900 per unit, f.0.b. At the request of the firm the unit price was 
redud-by 5 per cent-to Rs. 855. 

1.5. Further negotiations were conducted abroad (July, 1975) by the 
Ministry's represemAative with a foreign firm purporting to represent a 
foreign Government. During tbese negotiations & unit price was 
reduced initially to Ks. 775 if the order was for 50,000 units and Rs. 700 
if the or& was for 1,00,000 units and, later, to  to. 710 6.e. a reduction 



of 21 per cent) irrespective of the size of the order. There was no con- 
sultation with the Ministry d Finance ( M a c e )  earlier or at this stage. 
On the basis of an 'end user certificate' produced by the iirm, agreement 
was also meached on the ultimate buyer-fomign Government LA', subject, 
howevex, to scrutiny, acceptance and codinnation from India. It was 
further a m  during these negotiations that: 

-the shipping documents would be sent direct to the forcign 
b e m m e n t ,  but not the paiced invoices; 

-the transaation would be with the firm who would, in turn, quote 
its own price t~ the foreign Government. 

1.6. On scrutiny, the 'end user certificate' was found to be unacceptdAe 
and the 6rm was asked to submit a proper and acceptable certificate along 
with the formal order for the stores. 

1.7. On 21st July, 1975, z formal order was received from the firm 
for 35,000 units of stores (later increased to 50,000 units in August, 1975) 
without the requisite 'and user certificate' for any indication of the ultimate 
buyer-the foreign Government. 

The order stipulated, inter alia, that: 

-all payments would be made in Indian rupees acquirixl through 
a convertible currency; 

-shipping would be arranged by the firm; 

-& requisite 'end user certificate' would be submitted by the 
firm while opening the letter of credit. 

1.8. On 23rd August, 1975 an 'end user certificate' wos received from 
the firm emanating from foreign Government 'B' which had not figured in 
the earlier negotiations.. A delegation of foreign Government 'B' happen- 
ed to be visiting India (Ministry of Defence) at about the same time and 
stated, when oonsulted, that it was not aware of the requirements of the 
stores indicated in the 'ad user certificate'. 

1.9. Meanwhile, a detailed procedure was prescribed (31st July, 1975) 
by the Ministry of Defence which enjoined, inter alia, that the Ministry 
d Finaace (Defence) would be consulted in regard to the contractual 
pnovisiom for .prices, tams of payment, deliveries etc. The prices were 
to be determined with reference to the current estimated cost of production 
with spec& addititma1 provisionp for material and labour escalation, 
eltmenc d p d t  ttc. 



1.10. The concurrence of the Ministry of Finance (Defence) was in 
,this case sought/o;btaiaed, ex-post-fwto, on 26th/28th August 1975 to 
a unit price of Rs. 710 f.0.b. on the bask of cost data of the basic equip 
ment (without accessories). It was stated that supplies would be delivered 
ex-stock and the stocks would be. lreplenished through subsequent manu- 
facture. 

1.11. On 27th August 1075 a letter of credit for Rs. 2.49 crores (in 
Indian Rupees) was established by the foreign fim's bankers with an 
Indian bank and the stores (35,000 units along with accessories) were 
despatched in September 1975 in a vessel chartered by the firm. Accord- 
ing to instructions isswl by the Ministry of Defence, although the stores 
had been issued to foreign Government 'W, the bill of lading waz to 
indicate the foreign firm's bank as the consignee. 

1.12. In October 1975, the Military Adviser to an Indian Mission 
abroad reported that the shipmen! purporting to have Geen despatched to 
foreign Government 'B' was intended tor and had in fact been despatched 
to another destination. Later, in May, 1976, the firm held that as the 
buyer of the stores from the Ministry of Defence, it had the right and 
option to re-sell (or subdivide) the smres to any other customer(s). 

1.1 3. The case reveals : 
-that the contract was concluded with a private foreign firm, 

instead of the ultimate buyer (foreign Government); 

-an understanding was reached with the firm that prices would 
not be revealed and that the firm would be free to quote its 
own price to the foreign Government; 

-although the initial 'end user certificate' furnished by the firm 
was found to be unacceptable, the genuineness of the second 
'end user certificate' was not established before the despatch 
of stares; 

-no steps were taken to ensure that the stores reached the intend- 
ed destination; copies of shipping documents were also not 
despatched to the specified foreign Government until 4 weeks 
after the despatch of stores. 

Besides, 

-accessories of the value (at cost) of Rs. 8.90 lakhs had been 
supplid .though these were not taken into account in the cost 
data on which the price was deemed to have been based; 

--the manufaoture of the basic equipment alone (far replenish- 
ment of stocks) would. on the basis of the estimated cost of 



manufacture for 1976-77, involve an a d d i t i d  expenditure 
of Rs. 41.66 lakhs. 

* 
The Ministry of Defence stated (March 1977) that: 

-the 'end user certificate' was omly intended as a safeguard and: 
the same was not verified or got authenticated as there was 
not doubt about its au,thenticity; 

-all contracts were on f.o:b. basis and there was no requirement 
to ensure that $the stores reached the correct destination and' 
that- 

-there was no requirement that the priced invoices should be sent 
to the fareign Government. 

[Paragraph 9 of the Report of the Comptroller & Auditor General of. 
India for the year 1975-76, Union Government (Defence Services)] - 
NOTA : For facility of reference. certain terms used in the audit para had been referred to. 

in the succeeding paragraphs of this Report as under : 

As per Audit Para 
'a foreign Govcrnmcnt' . . . . foreign Government 'A' 
'foreign Government 'A' . . . . foreign Government1 country 'B' 

'foreign Government 'B' . . . . foreign Government/country'C' 

'another destination ' . . foreign Government/country 'A' 
(of Para I.-12- of this ~ & r t j  

'foreign firm ' or 'firm ' . . 'Agent" 

1.14. The paragraph reveals some glaring deficiencies and deviations 
from the prescribed practice in the matter of export of defence hardware 
through an Agent. Broadly, the facts are that initially, bhe Agent wanted 
to negotiate the export deal for country 'A' but that was not followed, a5 
the country was not acceptable. Thereafter, the Agent negotiated the dcal 
for country 'B' on the production of an end user certificate from that 
country, but this certificate was rejected because it was not signed at the 
required level. Finally, the export deal was finalised for country 'C' 
and the goods were purportedly shipped for cuuntry 'C' but did not reach 
there and actually reached country 'A' which was not origi-ally 
approved.. 

Background and nature of export of defence items 

1.15. It is seen from the Audit paragraph that in pursuance of the. 
dtcision taken by the Ministry of Defence, a special cell was set up in 
the Department of Defence Production in February 1973, to handle 



expcrrt order for some specific items of equipment and stores on a corn 
wcial  basis, for the sake of utilising spare capacity in the ordnance- 
fautories and to earn foreign exchange. 

1.16. During evidence, the Secretary (Defence Production) informed' 
tbe Committee that export was not the basic objective of production of.' 
defence stores in Ordnance Factories. Elaborating the point, he: 
stated: 

"At the moment, our ordnance factories are n q  a commercial 
organisation; they are engag4 predominantly in producing 
for Our armed forces. T&s is slightly different from some. 
of our defence Public Sedtor Undertakings, which are not 
only commercial organisations, but also deal with a produc- 
mix, some of which is for export. For instance, we have 
Bharat Electronics which produces a lot of electronic equip- 
ment, non-lethal in character, purely for civil use or for the 
use of professional departments like Telephones, P&T, 
Radio etc. as also Shipyards. Corporations like the Bharat 
Earth Movers do make equipment for export and go about 
seeking export of that equipment. In the case of ordnance 
factories, export is an objective, but still not a basic objec- 
tive. We have in our actual experience of running defenw 
industries come to the conclusion that some degree of export 
is unavoidable and even desirable for the reason that in the 
very nature of defence demands, they are not such as some 
in steady doses; they do tend to fluctuate. The fluctuations 
have a lot to do with the changing requirements of the 
Armed Forces. The changes relate in turn to training, the 
extent of war wastage reserve, the need to replenish those 
reserves, and the shelf like of various kinds of ammunition. 

So, in the nature of these demands that are projected on the 
DGOF, defence requirements have a tendency to fluctuate 
and fluctuate very widely. I have some facts, and figures 
and to give an example of the kind of fluctuations that occur, 
and roughly this happens, suppose we need 20,000 Nos. a 
year for 2 or 3 years running and then suddenly in the fifth 
year. . . .the demand drops to 2000 to 3000 because you have 
built up the stocks msaq for what we call the war waste- 
age resesves a d ,  thereafter, the demand drops to what is- 
called the training reserve." 



"Then the problem arises: what do you do  to tackle this problem 
of fluctuating demands.. . .We found the answer is not that 
when this drop in demand comes, you shut down your shop, 
through away your jigs, tools and instruments, discard your 
equipment and retrench your men, not only because of the 
hardship it involves to the labour that we employ but also 
because you want in the interests of defence itself to keep alive 
your skiIls, to keep your s h q  open, to keep your capacity to 
produce for defence, if and when overnight or at  a short notice 
demands should be imposed upon you which are directly relat- 
ed to defence. So, in this background we found that for cer- 
tain items like the ones we are discussing, we have run into a 
situation o r  stage where the demands have dropped and we 
bave to go in for what we call diversification. Slowly we came 
to the conclusion that there are broadly two areas in which 
we can diversity." 

1.17. Explaining the two feasible areas of diversification of i tem of 
defence production, the Secretary (Defence Production) stated: 

"One is the area of picking up export orders where this may be 
desirable and possible and discreet to carry out and another is 
diversification of the same capacity and skills and equipment 
to produce goods for civilian needs so as to improve the eco- 
nomic viability of our projects and so as to keep our shills dive 
and keep your managerial and administrative skill alive and to 
keep our skilled and unskilled labour in position so that they 
could be commandeered to produce requirements of defence 
whenever that demand picks up again." 

1.18. Explaining the selective and discreet basis on which the export of 
.defence items should be undertaken, the witness confirmed: 

". . . .we have been, for some years engaged in exports on 3 limited 
scale, on a highly selective basis, as discreetly as we can and 
on a low profile and taking as much care as we can, not to 
get involved and entangled in any areas of conflict or supply 
to countries which might prove embarrasing to us and which 
is the reason why we ask for end-user certificates.' ' 

1.19. On an enquiry about the agencies consulted at the time of sdec- 
ttim of party to whom hardware were to be exported, the witness stated: 



"Primarily we go by the advice d the Ministry of External Athirs.. 
The decision to select the country is a matter which depends 
on the enquiries which come in our way because of our policy 
of doing it on a low p rde  and not treating this as a commer- 
cial operation but from the angle of discreet necessity. We 
do not go: round the world seeking this business and establish- 
ing contracts and setting up arrangements for export. We handle 
such enquiries as cons  in our way. When those enquiries 
come, what we seek is to know the end use to which the intend- 
ing purchaser wants to put the equipment. Then we consult 
the Army Headquarters from our security, or defence point of 
view. We consult the Ministry of External Affairs from foreigd 
relations point of view and then take a judgement." 

1.20. The witness confirmed the presumption of the Committee that sm 
much concern was not about the sale of the goods but what was Of more 
concern was that defence stores did not get into the hands which were not 
approved. 

I .21. On enquiry the Committee were informed that export of military 
hardware was started a little before 1972. 

Deviations from the prescribed policyldecision for export 

1.22. According to the Audit Paragraph, while no formal procedures 
were laid down for dealing with transactions for export of defence hard- 
ware, it was decided in September 1973, in a high level meeting in the Min- 
istry of Defence that while agents could be appointed to explore the market, 
the final deals would be on a Government-tffiovernment basis and stores 
in all cases despatched direct to the Government concerned. 

1.23. On an enquiry about the need for this decision of Government-to- 
Government basis transactions, the witness informed: . 

"At that p i n t  of time that was the thinking of the government." 

1.24. Elaborating, the Secretary (Defence Production) explained that i u  
the 1973 meeting, the point was made that there might be no objection t o  
deal with agents of foreign governments if they were reputable. That met- 
ing was held at Inter-Ministerial level. There were representatives of Min- 
istry of Defence as well as Economic Affairs, External Mairs, Finance+ 
(Defence) and so on. The same meeting in which the policy of Govern- 
ment to Government transaction was commended had also authorised deal- 
ings with agents of foreign government if they were reputable. 



1.25. The representative of the Department of Defence Production fur- 
ther clarified: 

'The fact is that in this particular transaction the decision not to 
deal directly with the concerned Government was allowed by 
the then G o v m e n t . "  

1i26. The Committee enquired about the authority which approved this 
particular deal and also whether this was a blanket approval or specific for 
this case only. The Committee further desired to know the date on which 
.this approval was given together with the reasons for regularisation of the 
deviationlviolatioa and the circumstances under which it was mooted. In  
:a note the Department of Defence Production stated as follows: 

". . . .it will be clear from the minutes of the meeting held on 6-9-1973 
the Government was not precluded from dealing with agents. 
In this particular case, the deal was approved by the then RUM 
on 28-8-1975 and applied only to this case. . . .it may be stated 
that in view of what has been stated above, the question of 
regularisation did not arise." 

1.27. According to the Audit paragraph, on an enquiry received in 
'June 1975 from an Indian firm for export of certain items, further negotia- 
-lions were conducted abroad in July 1975 by the representative of the 
Defence Minitry with an Agent purporting to represent a foreign Govern- 
.merit 'A'. During these negotiations the unit price, which was earlier quot- 
ed at Rs. 900 f.0.b. (reduced to Rs. 855) to an Indian agent, was reduced 
Initially to Rs. 775 if the order was for 50,000 units and Rs. 700 if the 
order was for 1,00,000 units and later to Rs. 710, irrespective of the size 
.of the order, without the consultation of the Ministry of Finance (Defence). 

1.28. On the basis of an end-user certificate produced by the Agent, 
agreement was also reached on the ultimate buyer-foreign Government 'B' 
subject to scrutiny, acceptance and confirmation from India. It was also 
agreed during these negotiations that the shipping documents would be sent 
direct to the foreign Government, but not the priced invoices and the tran- 
saction would be with the Agent who would in turn quote its own price to 
thz foreign Government. 

1.29. The Committee sought clarification as to whether the terms of 
the deal negotiated with the Apnt  regarding the Agent being permitted 
t o  quote its own price to the ultimate buyer were not very unusual and also 
whether these terms were specifically brcwght to the notice of the Secretary 
(Defence Producfion)/hilinist of Finance (Defence) on conclusion of the 



negotiations. In a note the Department of Defence Production have stated 
a s  follows: 

"In International Arms trade it is not an unusual practice for both 
buyer and seller pursuing a deal through a third party, i.e. 
agents, wherein the seller quotes a price to the agent, who in 
turn quotes the price to the buyer in the process earning an 
element of profit for himself. It was agreed in this case that 
no agency commission would be payable by Government of 
India. Hence the Agent could quote this own price to ultimate 
buyer. The terms of this particular sale were discussed by thd 
then OSD with Secretary DP) and RUM who were fully kept 
in the picture. It appears, however, that this particular aspect 
of the sale was not specifically brought to the notice of Finance 
(Defence)." 

1.30. I t  may, however, be in this connection pointed out that according 
TO the decision taken at the high level meeting in September 1973, agents' 
commission upto 5 per cent of the f.0.b. price could be paid without the 
concurrence of the Ministry of Finance (Economic Affairs Department); 
commission beyond 5 per cent would require specific approval of the 
Ministry of Finance. 

1.31. In pursuance of the negotiations finalised abroad with the Agent, 
without consultation of Ministry of Finance (Defence) and Government 'A', 
not being acceptable, the Agent produced another end-user certificate from 
Government 'B'. On scrutiny, the 'end-user certificate' on behalf of 
Government 'B' was rejected and the firm asked to submit a proper certifi- 
cate together with the formal order for the stores. Formal order was re- 
ceived from the Agent on 21 July 1975 for 35,000 units of stores (later 
increased to 50,000 units h August 1975) without the requisite 'end-user 
certificate' and even without any indication of the ultimate buyer, which 
.?nrer alia stipulated that- 

(i) all payments would be made in Indian rupees acquired through 
a convertible currency; 

(ii) shipping would be arranged by the Agent; 

(iii) the requisite 'end-user certificate' would be submitted by the 
Agent while opening the letter of credit. 

1.32. The Committee desired to know the reasons for accepting the 
supply order from the agent when the ultimate buyer was not known and 
the order was also not accompanied by a valid 'end-user cmtilicate'. In 



a note,* the Department of Defence Production intimated that the supply 
order based on the already negotiated price was accepted with the stipu- 
lation that the end user certificate should be produced by the Agent, which 
should be accepted to the Government of India. Further, according to the 
Agent producing an acceptable end user certificate, along with opening the 
Letter of Credit, the production of the end-user certificate itself was not 
a precondition for signing the supply order. 

1.33. The Audit paragraph further points out that on 23 August 1975.. 
an end-user certificate was received from the firm emanating from yet an- 
other foreign Government 'C' which did not figure in the earlier negotia- 
tions. 

1.34. Subsequently, on 27 August 1975, .a letter of Credit for Rs. 2.49. 
crores (in Indian rupees) was established by the Agent's bankers with an 
Indian Bank and the stores (35,000 units along with accessories) were 
despatched in September 1975 in a vessel chartered by the firm. 

1.35. About the negotiations pertaining to the case in question entirely 
with an agent, the Secretary, Defence Production stated: 

". . . .in this particular transaction it was negotiated with the private 
party. It was done on the basis of a document which said 
that it was required for the exclusive use of the Armed 
Forces of that particular country." 

1.36. Pointing out their concern for the mode of finalisation of the 
trarrsaction with an agent on the production of an end-user certificate by 
him, the Committee enquired if that was the method for conclusion of 
transactions between Government and Government. The Secretary 
(Defence Production) explained: 

"Even the 1973 decision did not bar any dealings with any private 
party as such. The crucial test is for which country it was 
meant and whether it was appropriate from our point of view.. 
In this case, it was the country 'C'. Even though it was a 
private party to whom the sale was ma&, the understanding 
presupposed that it was required not by that party but by the 
Government of that country 'C'." 

The witness further explained: 

"The actual experience is that enquiries came mostly on behalf of 
the intermediaries and that the governments concerned evid- 
ently preferred not to make direct government to government 

- --- - 
*Not vetted by Audit. 



enquiries. Presumably they also would like to be left out of. 
the embarrassment of direct enquiries." 

1.37. The point made out by the Secretary, Defence Production during 
evidence that "even the 1973 decision did not bar any dealings with any 
private party as such" was based on the record of discussions at the high 
level meeting held in September 1973. It is, however, observed that the 
necessary decision related to the selection of forzign Agents, if they were 
reputable for purposes of initiating negotiations and not for purposes of 
finalisation of the deal with them. 

1.38. On the Committee's asking whether any formal directive in pur- 
suance of the decisions taken in September 1973 was issued, the Depart- 
ment of Defence Production informed that no formal directive in pursu- 
ance of the decisions taken in the meeting in the room of former Raksha 
Utpadan Mantri w s  issued. It was not felt necessary to issue any formal 
directive as only broad guiding principles were discussed to be kept in 
view in finalising transactions of export of Defence Stores. 

1.39. The Committee desired to know whether any guidelines had been 
laid down by Government for the selection/appointn~ent of agents for the 
export deals. The D-epartment of Defence Production appraised the Com- 
mittee that no guidelines had been laid down by Government for the selec- 
tionhppointment of agents for export deals but inquiries from agents were 
considered on merits of each case as and when received. 

1.40. The Committee further enquired about thi. procedure followed 
for verifying the credentials of the agents beforc conducting any negotia- 
tions with them and whether such a procedure was followed in the present 
case. The Department of Defence Production informed the Committee in 
a ncte that although there was no laid down procedure for verifying the 
credentials of the .agents, in cases where it was considered necessary, in- 
quiriec were made from this country's Embassies abroad and in some cases 
from banks. . I 

1.41. The Committee pointed out that when an a3ent said that he 
wanted certain s o d s  for certain Government and hc produced the rcyui- 
site end-user certificate, the name of the ultimnte buver ~s ob-vious. At 
that stage, according to the decision of 1973. verificatinnc; frnni nltim.3~ 
buyer was necessary. The Secretary (Defence Product;on\ explained: 

"Tn this case he was to us n contractinr pnrtv, purclinsin~ tli: 
equipment for use in a countrv 'C' on the strenor11 of . I  dor11- 
ment which purported to give us a satisfaction or an assurance 
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that it was needed for country 'C', that it would not be ex- 
ported out of tbat country 'C' and that it is intended to meet 
the requirements of the Government of the country 'C'." 

1.42. The Committee pointed out that the role of.  the Agent was to 
bring the seller country and the buyer country together. A f t a  the price 
quoted by the seller country was accepted, Government-to-Government 
dealings for actual sale transaction should begin. In this context, the Com- 
mittee sought justification for, the fact that in this case the Agent proved 
to  be the actual purchaser. The Secretary, Defence Producion explained: 

"In actual practice, we make sure about the country to which it 
goes. It  is not necassarily our practice to seek out and deal 
with the Government direct." 

1.43. The Secretary (Defence Production) further explained that even 
for actual sale, it was not their practice to insist on the transaction being 
necessarily direct with the foreign Government. 

1.44. It  was observed that in this case the agent not only explored 
the markets and finalised the deal but also arranged the ship and diverted 
the goods to some other country. According to instructions issued by the 
Ministry, although the stores had been issued to foreign Government 'C', 
the bill of lading was to indicate the Agent's bank as thc consignee. The 
Committee, thercfore, enquired whether the practice followed was not a 
deviation from the decision taken in September 1973. The Secretary 
(Defence Production) confirmed that this was true in this particular case 
but that was approved by the Government at that time. The witness also 
confirmed that excepting this end-user certficate from Government 'C' 
(which ultimately turned out to be a spurious document). there was no 
dealing with Government 'C' and Indian Government's diplon~atic machi- 
neary in Country 'C'. 

1.45. According to the Audit Paragraph, it was agreed during negotia- 
tions with the Agent that the shipping documents (except the priced in- 
voices) would be sent direct to the foreign government. The original sh ip  
ping documents were, however, handed over to the Agent. The Com- 
mittce enquired the reasons for handing over the same to the Agent. The 
Department of Defence Production intimated that the available documents 
did not indicate as to why instructions were issued that shipping docu- 
ments would be handed over to the representative of the firm. 

1.46. The Committee asked the reasons for not stating the name of 
the country as consipnee in the bill of lading instead of foreign firm's 
hank. The Department of Defence Production explained as follows: 



"In the Bill of Lading the following words were incorporated; 
shipped at Bombay Embarkation Headquarters). . . .in appa- 
rent good vessel called M/s. Septimus for carriage to PP* 
NV Slavenburg's Bank Coolsingel-63 Rotterdom Ministry of 
Defence, Government of. . . . . . *). 

.It wwld be seen from the above that besides the foreign bank the 
name of the country and the port of disembarkation 'PP' was 
also mentioned. The name of the Bank was put on the Bill, 
of Lading as they had opened the Letter of Crcdit." 

1.47. The Committee further enquired as to whom and when the 
forig~nal negotiated copy of the Bill of Lading etc. was handed over. The 
Department of Defence Production intimated that it was not clear from 
the documents available as to whom and when the original negotiated copy 
of the bill of lading etc. WC~S handed over. 

1.48. According to the Audit paragraph, no steps appear to have been 
taken to ensure that the stores rcached the intended dcstination as even 
the copies of shipping documcnts werc not despatched to the specified 
foreign government until 4 weehs after the despatch of stores. The Com- 
mittee desircd to know thc reasons for not sending copies of the shipping 
documents to the foreign Go~~ernment concerned immediately on despatch- 
ing the stores. The Department of Defencc Production intimated that the 
delay occurred due to the fact that in the meantime this matter became a 
subject of investigation by Government 'C' and as such a copy of the 
shipping documcnts could hc sent only afterwards. 

1.49. Th? Audit paragraph rcveals that in October 1975, the Militxy 
Adviser to an Indian Mission abroad reported that the shipment purporting 
t o  havc been despatched to Country 'C' was intended for and dcspatched 
to mother dcstination. The Committee. therefore, desired to know 
whethcr any investigation had been conducted in regard to the diversion 
of the stores to another dcstinalion and if so, the outcome of this investiga- 
tiofi. The Department of Defencc Production have replied: 

"The matter was d i s c o r d  a! a high level between representatives 
of country 'C' and lndia and certain investigations were initiat- 
cd but further outcome was not known to this Ministry." 

1.50. It is further seen from the Audit paragraph that in May 1976, 
the Agent claimed the right and option to re-sell as the buycr of the stores. 
-- --- . - - - -- -- -- -- 

*Port named is located in country 'C'. 
**donates country 'C'. 



The Committee sought clarification to the effect whether the firm's afore-- 
said contention was not against the terms and conditions of the supply order 
particularly in the light of an 'end-user certificate'. In a note &he Depart- 
ment of Defence Production intimated as follows: 

"The firm's contention that is has the right to resell the stores t o ,  
any other customer is not in c o n f m i t y  with the terms and 
conditions of the supply order which clearly states that the 
country who gives the End-User Certificate would have no 
right to resell or loan these items to any other country with- 
out specific approval of the Government of India. This 
contention of the firm was further refuted vide our letter dated 
18-5-75 (not enclosed.)" 

Verification of end user's Certificate 

1.51. According to the Audit Paragraph, before the transaction, i~ 
question, was finalised, there was an enquiry by the Agent for country 'A" 
which was rejected and subsequently for country 'B', for which the end user 
certificate was produced. 

1.52. Elucidating this matter during evidence, the Secretary (Defence 
Production) explained:- 

"In the case of country 'A'. we had a political hesitation. We did 
not accept it; in the case of c,ountry 'B', we did not have it; 
but we did not accept the certificate because the certificate 
came from a level lower than acceptable.. . .Otherwise, there 
was no objection." 

1.53. The Committee desired to know as to how and at what stages the 
countries 'A', 'B' and 'C' came in the picture. The Committee also sought 
confirmation to the effcct whether the Agent had initially indicated its 
intention of sending the Defence Stores for any country other than 'A' and 
the circumstances under which it was changed later on. In a note, the 
Department of Defence Production have stated: 

"it appears that initially the firm wanted to know whether we could 
suppl:r the stores for country 'A,'. This was when OSD was 
abroad in the beginning of July, 1975. When i t  was made 
clear to the firm by OSD that supplies could not be made to 
country 'A' the firm wanted to know whether supplies could 
be made to country 'B' and also furnished an end-user certifi- 
cate signed by an officer in the High Commission of country 
'B'. During negotiations, the firm was informed that the end 
user certificate required further scrutiny in India and con- 
firnation whether it was acceptable would have to be furnished' 



on OSD's return to India. The position regarding end user 
certificate was checked up  with Ministry of External Affairs 
who were of the view that the end user certificate should be 
issued bj the Government concerned instead of the High 
Commission abroad. During discussions held in Delhi on 
28th Jdy ,  1975, the position was made clear to the buyer that 
the end user certificate signed by a junior officer in the High 
Commission of country 'B' was not acceptable. 

"'Thereaftcr, the firm submitted an end user certificate from country 
'C' through our High Commission abroad. The end user 
certificate was signed by the Permancnt Secretary, Ministry 

.of Foreign Affairs of country 'C'. This was received 
through our Military Adviser vide his letter dated 10th 
August, 1975." 

1.54. The Committee desired to know as to when the decision for 
rejecting the end-user certificate from country 'B' was taken. Thc Joint 
Secretary, Ministry of Defenec explained: 

"The contract was signed in July, 1975. But that contract only 
specified the conditions, the price and all that. But it was 
subject to end user certificate being acceptable. With this 
contract on hand, the purchaser, that is. the agent %as tryins 
to produce one after anothcr a serics of end-user certificates. 
The first was not accepted, because the country was not 
acceptable. The sccond waq not acecpted because the 
signatory was only a Junior Officer of that country's Hirh 
Comn~ission, and that was done after returning to India and 
showing it to the External Affairs Ministry. Because they 
would not agree, that was rejected. The third end-user certi- 
ficate came later." 

1.55. On  an enquiry about the authority and gen~~ineness of the end- 
mer's certificate whic,h later on turned out to be spurious, the Secretary 
(Defence Production) explained:- 

"ln this case thcre is an advice from our Militarv Adviser that in 
the other country t h 3  particular gentleman who has given the 
certificate was erstwhile Ambassadhr and he says that presum- 
ably it is genuine and after that he has not sent any further 
advice to the contrary to this date. Another bit of informa- 
tion is that at this end the members of the visiting Delegation 
of country C who said they did not know whether or not the 



equipment was needed by their country, did not raise any. 
question about the authenticity of the signature. Even in the 
ultimate disposal of this case, we are not in a position to say till 
this day whether the document is spurious or otherwise. The 
Government subsequently said that this commodity was not 
needed by them." 

1.56. I t  transpired during evidence that the Military Adviser to one 
of our High Commissioners in a foreign country also indicated that. 
although he checked from his sources that the person who signed the end- 
user certificate on behalf of country 'C' was identifiable, he was trying to 
confirm whether the signatme on the certificate were of the same person. 
Quoting certain statements of the representative of the Agent; however, 
the Military Adviser had expressed certain doubts. 

1.57. The Committee sought confirmation of the fact that a trade 
delegation of the Government 'C' visiting this country at that time had, 
when sounded, stated that to their information, there was no such nced for 
their country. The Secretary (Defence Production) explained:- 

"What the delegation told us that the:, wcre not aware of such a 
transaction or such a nced on the part of their country. May 
I add that we had really no means of knowing whether the 
document was forged or spuriow or not. As it happened, the 
subsequent development5 indicated that it was not a correct 
one and that the Goccrnment of that country 'C' was not 
interested in these goods." 

1.58. When the Committee asked as to why the authenticity of thc cnd- 
user certificate purportingly emanatin? from coilntry 'C', was not got vcri- 
fied from this country's Ambassador in country 'C', the Secretary (Defence 
Production) explained :- 

"I think that would have been very desirable. Rut at that point 
of time when the' contract was concluded. there was no reason 
to doubt the authenticity. The records seem to indicate thxt 
at that point of time there was no doubt." 

The witness added:- 

"It is clear in this particular instance that it i s  not a transaction bet- 
ween the Government of Country 'C' and the Government of 
India. That is entirely correct. What we are tryinp to explain 
is that the transaction. nevertheless, with this. particular firm. 



was for the exclusive use of the armed forces of the Gwern- 
Dent of Country 'C' and in support of the assurance or under- 
taking, a document was furnished by the party purported t o  
have been written by the Permanent Secretary of that particu- 
lar country certifying that it was intended for the exclusive use 
of the armed forces of that country and on that basis of the 
then ~overnment  seems to have acted." 

1.59. The Committee dcsired to know the steps taken or p r o p e d  tot 
be taken by Government to ensure the genuineness of the end-user certifi- 
cates. The Department of Defence Production have stated in a note that 
after this episode the end-user certificates issued by any country to an Agent 
were verified through this country's own diplomatic missions. The note. 
further states- 

"It is only after confirmation is received from our Embassies/Hight 
Commissions and the country is cleared by the Ministry of 
External Affairs that the stores are actually despatched." 

Loss due to wrong firation of  sule price 

I .60. According to the Audit Paragraph, the manufacture of the basic 
equipment alone (for replenishment of stocks) would, on the basis of the 
estimated cost of manufacture for 1976-77, involved an additional expendi- 
ture of Rs. 41.66 lakhs. Besides, accessories of the value (at cost) of 
Rs. 8.90 lakhs had been supplied though these were not taken into account 
in th: cost data on which the price was dcemed to have been based. 

1.6 1 .  Thc Comrnittce werc informed by the representative of the Minis- 
try of Dcfence that the hardware were loaded on the ships between 12th and' 
14th September. 1975. 

I .63. On an enquiry about the source which furnished the cost of pro-- 
duction. the representativs of the Ministry of Defence explained:- 

"The cost figure of Rs. 710 which was quoted was bawd on cer- 
tain figures which were made available in April, 1975. At that 
time, the cost figures which were available with the officer who 
was dealing with this thing were: maximum Rs. 624 and mini- 
mum Rs. 397. The cost figure was vetted by the local audit 
officer of the factory. A little before this transaction took 
place, on 3rd June, 1975, these prices were confirmed. This 
officer left for London in the beginning of July. So. he had 
the latest figures available with him at that time." 



1.63. The detailed procedure prescribed by the Ministry of Defence 
on 31st July, 1975, enjoined inter alia that.the Ministry of Finance (Def- 
ence) would be consulted in regard to tk contractual provisions for prices, 
terms of payment, deIiveries etc. The prices were to be determined with 
referencc to the current estimated cost of production with specific additional 
provisions for material and labour escalation, element of profit etc. 

1.64. The concurrence of the Ministry of Finance (Defence) \was in 
this case sought/obtained, cx-po.v-fmto on 16th/28th August, 1975 to a 
unit price of Rs. 710 f.0.b. on the basis of cost data of the basic equiprncnt 
(without accessories). It was stated that supplies would be dclivcred cx- 
stock and the stocks would bc replenished through subsequent manufacture. 

1.65. Asked about the reasons for taking more than two ymrs after the 
meeting of September, 1973 in laying down the dctailed procedure in July, 
1975, the Department of Defcnce Production stated that it would not be 
correct to say that there was a delay of two years in laying down procedure 
in July, 1975 as the meeting of September, 1973 was only to discuss broad 
policy guidelines. Further, the order of July, 1975 which was mainly pro- 
cedural in nature was not a specific follow up of the meeting of Septcmbcr, 
1973. 

1.66. The Committee desired to know as to how the Ministry of Fin- 
ance (Defence) had accorded in August, 1975 e.l--post-facto concurrence to 

the rate of Rs. 710 per unit (which was based on tbe cost data of the basic 
equipment-without accessories-for the year 1973-74 and for which no 
detailed bmk-up was available) without taking into account the latest esti- 
mated cast of production, escalation in labour and material cost. etc. Tn 
a note the Department of Defence Production have stated: 

"When the case was referred to Ministry of Finance (Defence) it 
was evident that Rs. 710 was the bcst price that could bc ob- 
tained after negotiations. This price was also more than the 
maximum cost of Rs. 624 each stated to have been yiven bv 
DGOF on 3rd June. 1975. The estimate of Rs. 624 evidently 
took into account escalation as 73-74 cost was stated to be 
Rs. 442.70. Tn view of this, the Ministry of Finance (Defence) 
agreed. Note was also taken of the point made by OSD. De- 
partmmt of Defencc Production that without further additional 
order-< the nroduction line for these items in the factorv con- 
cerned factd clowre. Such a closure would have meant loss 
%y way of idle time payments and non-utilisation of installed 
capacity. 



As for accessories, it was mentioned in the note that tbe item will 
be supplied along with one magazine. In the absence of any 
indication to the contrary, it was assumed that the cost data 
indulged the cost of this item. However, subsequent investiga- 
tions revealed that the estimated maximum cost then indicated 
was only for the weapon and did not include the cost of on: 
magazine or the other accessories, which although are not men- 
tioned in the note put up to the Ministry of Finance (Dzfencc), 
were actually supplied." 

1.67. T'hc Committee desired to know tho general approach with regard 
to exccl~ting supplics ascertaining, in particular, whether the supplies were 
cflectecl from thc extra and additional production or from ex-stock, to be 
replenished later on. The Secretary (Defence Production) cxp1aincd:- 

"As a general rulc. wc would like to export what is surplus for our 
own production. We will welcomc an export which involves 
additional order to our Ordnance Factories whcre we have the 
additional capacity, not to draw them from the stocks of the 
Army and sell thcm and wait for the future to replsnish the 
stocks of the Army. This is the position." 

1.68. When the Committee pointed out that it appeared from above thgt 
what was sold out was out of additional production. the Secretary (Defence 
Production) explained:- 

"We do both, if 1 may say so. in actual fact. Kecping in view the 
export enquiry, keeping in view the production of particular 
factories. keeping in view at what level the Army has been 
able to build up its "War Wastage" reserve as we call it, 
and other reserves, and depending upon thc factors arising at 
any point of time. we actually do the other thing also. namely. 
to takc export, order on thc basis of supply from stocks on 
the understanding that, to the extent necessary, the replenish- 
ment will come from new production in our own factories. It 
does happen in other cases. But in no case is it an export 
order at the cost of something which is needed by the Army. 
This is the position." 

1.69. Explaining at the instance of the Committee. the position a b u t  
the loss wstnined due to wren? fixation of price and non-accountnl nf 



charges for accessories, transport, packing etc., the Secretary (Defence Pro- 
duction ) stated:- 

"I would like to start with the accessories, transport and packing 
charges. I think, it would be entirely appropriate to say at the 
very outset that, as it would appear from the record, there 
was an omission in not taking specific note of the elements of 
accessories. I would explain the full background about the 
price that was actually negotiated. They started with a price 
of Rs. 900. Then, at a particular stage. a discount of 5 per 
cent had to be offered as a result of the negotiations. I believe, 
the price that they were trying to get was Rs. 775 and, finally, 
as a result of the give and take that usually takes place in 
such negotiations, they were ultimately able to sell for Rs. 710." 

1.70. The Committee enquired as to why prior clearance from Finance 
about the rates agreed upon with the foreign firm was not specifically ob- 
tained. The Department of Defence Production explained that the OSD 
was aware of the fact that in June, 1975 the estimated maximum and mini- 
mum cost of the item were Rs. 624 and Rs. 397 respectively. According 
to the Department OSD before his departure for abroad, was also fully 
aware that there was no demand for this itcm from the Army and if no 
orders were placed on the DGOF there would be idle time payment. 
During negotiations abroad OSD could get a price of Rs. 710 only. 

1.71. Advancing reasons to justify that there was virtually no loss in 
the deal, the Secretary (Defence Production) stated as follows during 
evidence : - 

"I would like to submit a few more facts prevailing at that parti- 
cular point of time, about the state of factory that produced 
this particular item. In 1971-72. the production level of this 
particular item was as much as 45,000. It  had been coming 
down and by the time we came to 1975-76 to which period 
this transaction relates. the demand on this factory had drop- 
ped to 9,092 as against 45,000. The demand for 1976-77 
was zero. We had a problem of what to do with the factory, 
whether or not to keep the factory going, how to keep the 
factory going if we do  not utilise the capacity in that factory 
skill-wise, labour-wise and equipment-wise. I have some 
figurcs to submit to you in this regard. We worked out that 
if you were to take the loss of idle time for one year, it would 
have been an amount of Rs. 36 lakhs loss. If you add to 
it an element of interest on the money earned on this parti- 
cular transaction, it would come to a total amount of Rs. 41 



lakhs loss. The point is therefore whether you want to take 
Rs. 41 lakhs as 'loss'. Actually, it is not Rs. 41 lakhs but 
it is lower. The Audit has arrived at the loss on an estimated 
figure for a particular year for which we have now more pre- 
cise figures which I shall presently submit to you." 

1.72. Elucidating the point further, thc representahe of the Ministry 
of Defence stated:- 

"Probably the loss of Rs. 41.66 lakhs which was mentioned in the. 
Audit Report is computed on the basis of the estimated cost 
given which was Rs. 829 per piece. But when it was actually 
manufactured, we have go the figure of the cost of produ-tion. 
The cost of production is Rs. 706.60. Therefore, the loss has 
not been of the order which has been indicated in the Audit 
Report ." 

1.73. Intervening, the representative of Audit stated that the actual cost 
of production had been mentioned as Rs. 706, but the price to be quoted 
was to be determined with reference to current year's cost of production 
with reference to specific conditions. Seeking confirmation of the fact that 
this was taken into consideration. the Committee desired to know the details 
of Rs. 706. The Secretary (Dcfence Production) stated:- 

"I madc this point in the beginning that we have been remiss in not 
including accessories and the cost of packing and all that. 
From the record it would appear that the accounting was not 
done. So far as the estimated figure of cost of production 
is concerned. that estimate happened to be Rs. 706. So, the 
order of the loss is not so much; it is very much less. But 
as regards the accessories and other parts, when the question 
comes. with your permission. I would like to make a few 
comments. The main point is when you decide to export, 
you should hear in mind one thing and that is you should say 
that you will accept a particular price and that you will not 
sell below that price. In this particular case, to a large extent, 
the price at which this sale was effected was Rs. 710. We will 
have to offset against this so called losswhat we would have 
had to incur if we did not take this export order and we had 
kept our factorv completely idle, etc. Then there is one option 
not to do expnrt and lose. let us say. Rs. 4.5 lakhs by keeping 
the factory idle or doins all that. This is the submission which 
T would like to make. As far as export is concerned, ulti- 
mately, in all these negotiations, we can only sell it at a 
price at which the international market will take it. We win 



have an option indeed not to sell it. In  this case, not to sen 
has to be consideied in the background of what would happen 
to our factory if we do not export." 

1.74. The Secretary (Defence Production) agreed when the Committee 
pointed out that the basic cost had got to be with reference to replenish- 
ment. 

1.75. At the instance of the Committee, the Secretary (Defence Prcb 
.duction) explained the question of potential loss as follows:- 

?? 

"Roughly Rs. 24 lakhs; it has to be viewed against our estimated 
loss of Rs. 36 plus Rs. 8 lakhs, i.c. Rs. 44 lakhs if you did not 
take this order and kept the production idle." 

1.76. Recalling the observation of tho S:crctnry (Defcncc Production) 
that cxport was not the main objective of Dcfcnce Production and the 
main obiective wa\ to set up a vital capacity to meet thc needs of the 
country's armed forces, the Committee pointed out that cvcn if there was 
no export and there waq no country coming forward to buy defence hard- 
ware. the army factories would n:)t be aflected much. How then did the 
consequences of closure, non-sale, non-export etc. were mriteriitl the Com- 
mittee enquired. The Secretary ( D:fcncc Production) stated:- 

"At thc time the transaction of cxport waq undertaken and acccpt- 
cd by the then C;ovcrnment, it fittcd in with thc policy of 
advocating judiciou\ exports to keep alive the factory and it 
was a permissible thing to do. Apparently, those who decided 
at that time did not think that this would be the ernharrass- 
ment that would be caused thercby. This is a kind of risk 
which one has to take while running the business of cxport 
abroad and dealing with other countrics." 

1.77. Whcn the Committee asked whethcr it could be presumed that 
dcvclopnient on the ordnance front had come to a stage whcrc export o r  
sale had become a vital point, the Secretary (Defence Production) cxplain- 
ed:- 

"That is not the part of their economy." 

1.78. The Committee note that in February, 1973 a special cell was 
set up in the Ministry of Defence (Department of Defence Production) to 
handle export orders for some specific items of equipment and stores an 
commercial basis. This was done in implementation of the decision of the 
Ministry to promote the export of such items, with the intention nf utilisih 
spare capacity in the ordnance factories and to earn foreign exchange. At 



a level mee* llcM ia September, 1973, bread p W n e s  for under- 
taking export of specific defence items were enunciated. The C o m m h  
were informed during evidence that defence requirements had a tendency 
te fluctuate and sometimes fluctuate very widely. Further, for certam items,. 
like the one, dealt with in ihis Report, a stage had reached, where the 
demand for defence had dropped very considerably, calling for some 
alternative avenues of utilization of the installed capacity either by picking 
up export orders or by diversification of the capacity and skills to produce 
goods for civilian needs so as to improve the economic viability of the fac- 
tories and to keep rmaoagerial and administrative skills alive so that they 
could be instantaneously pressed into service to produce requiren~ents of 
defence. whenever that picked up again. The Committee appreciat the 
general approach for this important decision. However, the Committee fail 
to understand as to why nq formal detailed directive wus issued in pursu- 
ance and elaboration of the decisions taken at the high level meeting held in 
September, 1973, which according to the Department, themselves had enun- 
ciated only the broad guiding principles. 

1.79. The Committee are further distressed to note that dehiled proce- 
dure for sale of defence stores was laid down only in July, 1975. Had such 
detailed instructions been issued the omissions and commissions that have 
been referred to in the Audit Para would not have perhaps occurred. The 
Commiftee would like to know as to why the question of laying down 
detailed procedure wim not considered essental at the initial stage itself in 
the light of broad guidelines enunciated in September, 1973, particularly 
when a special cell was in existence since February, 1973 to handle the 
export orders. 

1.80. The Committee note that at the high level meeting held in 
September, 1973, in the Ministry of Defence, it was inter alia decided that 
while agents could be nppointed to explore the market for export of stores, 
the final deals would be on Government-to-Government basis, and 
stores in all cases despatched direct to the Government concerned. The 
representative of the Ministry confirmed in very explicit terms during 
evidence that "we have been, for some years engaged in exports on a 
limited scale, on a highly selective h i s ,  as discreetly as we can and on a 
low profile and taking as much care as we can, not to get involved and 
entangled in any areas of conflict or supply to countries which mi1:ht prove 
embarrassing to us . . . . " The Committee deem it highly lamentable that in 
a case of executioln of an order for export of 35,000 units of stores, the entire 
deal was struck and executed in utter disregard of the aforesaid consider- 
ations and the discreet and cautious ~sproach enjoined upon in such matters 
was given to go by. That the deviation from the prescribed procedure was 
not entirely uninfentiqnal is borne out by the fact that the deal was not only 
concluded in entirety with the foreign Agent, but, graver still, no steps 



were taken to ensure tbat tbe stores arhurlly reacbed the intended foreign 
destination. 

1.81. Justifying the correctness of h a l i n g  the entire deal with the 
foreign Agent, the Secretary (Defence Production) pleaded during evidence 
tbat the same meeting (September, 1973) in which the policy of Govern- 
ment-tq-Government transaction was enunciated also authorised dealings 
with foreign tagents direct, if they were reputable. When the transaction with 
the Agent was really autborised under the original guidelines of September, 
1972, the Committee fail to appreciate the need for obtaining special appro- 
val from the authorities concerned for this unusual step. On perusal of the 
relevant portion of the record of discussion at the aforesaid meeting the 
Committee do not find any such authorization. It speaks only of selection 
of foreign Agents, if they were reputable, for purposes of initiating aego- 
tiations and not for purposes of finalisation of the deal with them. 

1.82. The Committee note that initially, the Agent wanted to negotiate 
the export deal for country 'A' but that was not followed, as the country 
was (no1 acceptable. Thereafter, the Agent negotiated the deal for country 
'B' on the production of an 'end user certificate' from that country, but this 
certificate w m  rejected because it was not signed at the required level. 
Finally, the export deal was finalised for country 'C'. 

1.1 3. The Committee were informed during evidence that there 
not so much concern about the sale of the defence stores but  hat was 01 
more ccvacern was that they did not get into unappwved hands and as 
safeguard, production of an 'end-user certificate' had been prescribed. The 
'end-user certificate' is a written affirmation from the foreign Government 
that the stores are intended for its own exclusive use (2nd would not be sold, 
transferred or diverted without the sellers' permission. The Committee are 
surprised to see the lack of seriousness displayed in conducting verifiwtion 
of the genuineness and authenticity of the final 'end-user certificate' from 
co11ntry 'C'. 

1.84. Explaining the position about the earlier rejection of the proposal 
for sale of stores to countries 'A' and 'R', the Secretary (Defence Production) 
stated during evidence that in the case of country 'A' there WAS 'political 
hesitation' but in the case of country 'B', the end ucer certificate was not 
acceptable as it was "from a level lower than acceptahle". Finallv, an end- 
user certifialte was received on 23 August, 1975, from the Agent, emanating 
from foreign Government 'C', which did not figure in their earlier negotia- 
tions. The very fact that the Agent was successively naming countries and 
bad. previously submitted a certificate which was not found acceplahle and 
the final one from a source which had not figured previously in the nego- 

.tintions should have ordinarily cautioned the Government to verify the 



bona fides of the Agent's latest proposal. Even whea the Military Adviser 
,to one of our Higb Commissioners had, expressed some doubts at the time 
of confirming whether the signature on the 'end-user certificate' was genuine 
.or not, the matter was not followed up. Subsequently, when the trade 
delegation of the country 'C visiting this country at that time, stated, ''that 
they were no.t nware of such a transaction or such a need on the part of 
their country'' the doubt should have further strengthened. Yet, the oficers 
responsible for negotiating the deal remained completely unperturbed and 
did not move to investigate the credeatials of the agent and the genuineness 
of his proposal and the authenticity of the end-user certificate furnished by 
him. The Committee fail to agree with the contention of the represenlative 
af the Ministry that "we had really no means of knowing whether document 
was forged or spurious or not''. The unfortunate consequences of this deal 
could have perhaps been avoided had, at that stage, verification of the eud- 
user certificate been made at least from this country's Ambassrndor/diplo- 
mat in countq 'C'-a course now proposed to be followed after the sad 
experience in this case. Even the Secretary (Defence Production) himself 
during evidence admitted the desirability for such a verification. The Com- 
mittee are amazed to learn from the Wretarv (Defence Production) that 
the Government ''are not in a position to sap till this day" whether the end- 
user certificate produced by the Agent from Country 'C was spnrious or 
otherwise". The Committee are at a loss to understand as to why it has 
not been fownd possible thus far to verify the authenticity of the end-user's 
certificate from country 'C'. The Ministry of Defence owe an explanation 
to the Committee for this apathy. 

1.85. It was also decided at the high level meeting in September, 1973 
that "agents' commission upto 5 per cent of the f.0.b. price could he paid 
witl~olrl the concurrence of the Ministry of Finance (Economic Affairs 
Department): commission beyond 5 per cent would require specific approval 
of the Ministry of Finance." The Committee are surprised to learn from 
Audit Piiragraph that durinq the course of negotiations with the Agent. it 
was mutually agreed upon that the tramaction would be with the agent who 
would in tnrn be free to quote it5 own price to the foreign government. This 
aspect of sale was not brought to the notice of Finance (Defence). The 
Committee feel that a blanket authority to the agent for quoting his own 
price i s  in complete cantravention of the decision taken in September. 1973 
with regard to the pavment of agents' Commission. In fact, this authorim- 
tion appears to be one of the reasons for promoting the agent to p l ~ y  a f o d  
in this whole deal culminating in the despatch of sbres to country 'A' which 
was nut origirunlly approved of hy adopting a devious course of action. 

1.86. Apart from the foregoing, the Committee have observed tbe 
following glaring lapses and omissions and Commissions in the case whicb 



p v e  beyoed dorM tbe pcrfonctory approach .nd iodidmnce to the 
prescribed p r o d m s  on the part of tbc authorities c o m e  

(i) Tbougb the 1973 guidelines required the stores to be despatched. 
direct to the foreign gov-nt concerned, these were actually 
despatched in September 1975 on f.0.b. bsis with bill of lading 
in favour d the agent's bankers. 

(ii) The shipping documents, which according to the negotiate4 
terms were required to be sent to the foreign buyer, were in 
fact banded over to the agent. The Department bas not been 
able to find from the existing records any explanation for this 
violation of the negotiated terms of cigreement. 

(ii) Copies of shipping documents were sent to the foreign govern- 
ment for whom the defence stores were sold to the agent, 4 
weeks after the despatch of stwes. This delay facilitafecl in 
the diversion of stores to a country other than that for which. 
they were intended and thii country was the same to whom 
the sale of stores were earlier refused an political considemtions. 

1.87. The above distressing features of the transaction create an irresis- 
tible impression in the mind of the Committee that there might have been 
complicity and collusion between the officers responsible for the deal and 
the agent. The Committee consider that this matter requires 13 thorough 
investigation with a view to fixilng responsibility for the lapses in this case 
and for taking necessary remedial measures for avoiding its recurrence in 
future. 

1.88. According to the detailed procedure prescribed by fhe Ministry of 
Defence on 31 July, X975, Ministry of Finance (Defence) were required to 
be consulted with regard to the comtrachnA provisions for prices, terms of 
payment, delivery etc. The prices were to be determined with reference to 
the current estimated cost of production with specific additional provisions 
for material and labour escalation, element of profits etc. The concur- 
rence of the Minis@ of Finance (Defence) was ila this case sought/obtained, 
ex-post-facto on 26/28 August, 1975 to a unit price of Rs. 710 f.0.b. on 
the basis of the cost d3ta of the basic equipment (without accessories). I t  
was stated that supplies would be delivered ex-stock and the stores would 
he replenished througb subsequent manufacture. 

1.89. The Committee are surprised to learn that according to the calcu- 
lations made by Audit, Government had to suffer a huee loss of s h u t  
Rs. 41.66 lakhs, being the additional expenditure involved iln the monufac- 
ture of basic equipment alone (f0.r replenishment of stocks) on the hmis of 
estimated cost of manufacture for 197677. The Serref~rv (Defence Pro- 
duction), however, explained dur in~  evidence that the extent of loss was not' 



to the aforesaid extemt as the audit's estimtate of loss is based on the estimated 
cost of production of Rs. 829 per unit whereas the actual cost bas turned 
out to be Rs. 706. According to him, the @re of loss of Rs. 41.66 lakhs 
wauld come down to abmt Rs. 24 la!& on the basis of actual cost of 
production. Further, according to Mnr, in the year 1975-76, to which the 
tranmction related the demand on tbis factory had dropped to 9.092. units 
as against the production level of 45,000 units and the demand for 1976-77 
got reduced to zero. As such, but for the order in question, there would 
have been a loss of Rs. 36 l a b s  op account of non-utilisation of tbe capa- 
city of that factory skill-wise, labour-wise and equipment-wise and if tbe 
element of interest on the molney earned on this particular transaction wae 
also added, it would have come to a total amount of Rs. 44 lakhs. According 
to the Secrebry (Defence Product!on) the loss of Rs. 24 lakhs on the basis 
of actual cost of production for replenishment purposes would have to be 
viewed against the national loss of Rs. 44 hlkhs if they did not have tbis 
order and consequently kept the factory idle. The plea advanced by the 
Secretary (Defence Production) for off-setting the actual lass of Rs. 24 bkhs 
by a national loss of Rs. 44 lakhs due to the possible closure of tbe factory 
for a year is not acceptable to the Committee in view of the fact that export 
is not the main objective of dzfence production and the question of closure 
of the ordnance hctory was wnly hypothetical. The Committee are 
astonished that even the Ministry of Finance (Defence) accorded their 
ex-post-facto sanction to the deal disregarding the prescribed procedures for 
working out the cost price. 

1.90. The Committee are further perturbed to learn that accessories 
valued at Rs. 8.90 lakhs have been supplied with the stores though these 
were not taken into account in the cost data on which the price was based. 
The Secretary (Defence Production) conceded during evidence that there 
was an omission in not taking specific note of the element of accessories. 
The Committee would like that the inquiry suggested by them in paragraph 
1.87 would also cover this costly lapse resulting in a loss of Rs. 8.90 lakhs. 



MODERNISATION OF PROCESSES OF PRODUCTION IN A 
FACTORY 

Audit Paragraph 

2.1. In May, 1970 a factory put up a proposal to the Director General, 
Ordnance Factories for replacement of the existing plants 'X' and 'Y' by 
modern ones. Plant 'X' was to consist of two units, each with a capacity 
to produce 65 tonnes of 'P' per month based on working for 24 hours a 
day and 22 days a month; one of the units was to be capable of switching 
over to 'P' for industrial use in lieu of 'P' for services' use, so that maxi- 
mum utilisation of the capacity could be made during peace time. Plant 
'Y' was to consist of two self-contained units, each capable of producing 
90 tonnes per month of 'PQ' past, by wet mixing process. The proposal 
envisaged an estimated cost of Rs. 507 lakhs including Rs. 102 lakhs for 
civil works. 

2.2. On 26th June, 1970, the Director General, Ordnance Factories 
placed two 'operational' indents on the Diretcor General, Supplies and Dis- 
posals for purchase of these two plants 'X' and 'Y'. In response to the 
tender enquiries, three offers were received from foreign firms. On 15th 
November, 1971, contracts were concluded with firm 'C' for supply of 
both the plants 'X' and 'Y' with spare parts, licences, know-how etc. at 
Rs. 308.88 lakhs (later amended to Rs. 310.05 lakhs) and Ks. 139.05 
lakhs (later amended to Rs. 139.27 lakhs) respectively. The warranty 
period available for plants 'X' and 'Y' under the contract was for a period 
of one year from the date of satisfactory commissioning subject to the 
condition that the warranty would expire at the end of 3 years from the 
date of the last delivery of equipment. 

2.3. In 1972 on the advice of the firm which was to supply the plants, 
it transpired that the acid mixing system would also need modernisation. 

2.4. Sanction for the project as a whole was accorded by the Govern- 
ment only in July 1973 as per the following particulars: 

(Rs. in lakhs ) 

Total Foreigu 
exch angr 
compo- 
nent. 

W 3 i:rnisa\i In  of acid mixing system . . . .  - 1'9.45 8. 47 



M:c:llanmu~, maintenance items, tramport, equipment ctc. . 24-58 2 . ~ 8  

S-rvices forming Director General, Ordinance Factories responsibility - 20.3; . 
Civil wxk3 and services forming Military Engineer Services' rapon 

~ibility (excluding cost of water supply from an existing reservoir) 187' 20 . . 
. . . . . .  Planning and security staff training 14- 56 o. 46 

. . . . . . . . .  Total 1 1 7 7 . 9  519-Eo -- 
2.5. Plants 'X' and 'Y' were supplied as follows:- 

Plant  . . . . . . . .  . Actual date com- 
pletion of supply 

'x* . . . . . . . .  . . .  July 1973 

'Y' . . . . . . . . . .  July 1974 
' Y' First supply 

. . . .  Second supply February 1976 

2.6. The warranty periods available for plants 'X' and 'Y' under the 
contract with reference to the last delivery of the equipment were to expire 
as follows:- 

Plant 'X' (units I & 11) . . . . . . . .  July1976 

Plant 'Y' (Unit I )  . . . . . .  . . July '977 

Plant 'Y' (Unit 11) . . . . . . .  . . February 1979 

2.7. To take full advantage of 12 months' warranty period after satis- 
factory commissioning, the Director General, Ordnance Factories gave the 
following programme in December, 1971 to the Military Engineer Services 
for completion of civil works. 

Event 

Plan! 'X' PIant 'T' 
-- --------- 

Unit I Unit 11 

Date Month Date Month Date Month 

a n t r a c t  date . . January o January o January o 
1972 1972 '97" '97" 

Receipt of building data 
and convening of 
sitting board . July 6 July 6 August 31 

'972 1972 '974 
Approval of sitting board 

proceedings. . .  Scptem- 8 Septenr 8 October 33 
ber 1972 ber 1972 '974 



Approximate estimates. October 
1972 

Administrative Approval Novem- 
ber 1972 

Handing over of build- 
ing shell for erection 
(6 buildings each) . March 

I974 

Completion of buildings Fenruary 
I975 

Commissioning of plants August 
1975 

10 Novem- 
ber 1972 

26 March 
I974 

37 Decem- 
1974 

43 June 
'975 

g February 
1975 

ro June 
1975 

26 October 
'976 

41 January 
1976 

2.8. This time schedule was not agreed to by the Military Engineer 
Service authorities who indicated in January, 1972 that completion of sheU 
stage of phase I (Plant 'X' and unit I of plant 'Y') and phase I1 (unit 11- 
of plant 'Y') works would require 25 months and 29 months respectively 
instead of 16 months from the date of issue of administrative approval 
envisaged by the Director General. Ordnance Factories. Pending a final 
decision in the matter, a go-ahead sanction for Rs. 45 lakhs was accorded' 
in April, 1972 for carrying out preliminary civil works augmentation of' 
water and electricity supply, initial procurement of steel etc. In April, 
1973 sanction was issued by Government for civil works and services for 
plant 'X' and phase I of plant 'Y' at an estimated cost of Rs. 117.54 lakhs 
(amended to Rs. 123.01 lakhs in August, 1976) for completion within* 
140 weeks from the date of sanction (i.e. by December, 1975). 

2.9. The civil works were, however, completed as follows against the  
dates of completion stipulated in the works contracts:- 

Civil Works for . . . . stipulated date of Actual date of corn- 
completion as per plrtion. 
the contracts of the 
civil work 

Plant 'X' . . . . . September 1975 .June 19.16 

Plant 'Y' . . . . December, 1974 March 1975 

2.10. The factory was authorised by the Ministry to conclude tw<r 
contracts in August, 1974 with a firm for erection of plant 'X' and one' 
unit of 'Y' at an estimated cost of Rs. 29.87 lakhs. The erection of plant 
'X' commenced during October, 1974 and was completed by September, 
1975. The erection of one unit of nlant 'Y' was completed by April, 1975. 
After erection of plants 'X' and 'Y' (one unit), it was found that concrete 
blenders were leaking and this delayed commissioning trials. The Minis- 
try intimated in December, 1976 that the concrete blenders of plants 'Y" 
were satisfactorily rectified by June, 1976. Of the 8 concrete blenders for. 



@aut 'X' -rectification of 7 blenders was stated to have been completed in 
October, 1976 (including one under test) and one was awaiting rectification, 

2.11. The .sanctioa accmded in July, 1973 (20 months after the con- 
tract was entered into3 iaulnded provision for treatment and filteration of 
water at a cost of Rs. 14.87 lakhs (subsequently amended to Rs. 19.63 
Wchs) 'but did not include any scheme for augmentation of water supply. 
i t  was, however, assessed in April 1974 that with the completion of the 
?new projects' the requirement of water supply would increase to 60 lakh 
gallons per day at the peak level of production (including 8 lakh gallons 
for other units in that area) against the current availability of 23 lakh 
gallons per day of fresh water and 10 lakh gallons per day to be procured 
%y recycliing for which provision existed in the factory. To meet the 
additional requirements of 27 lakh gallons, sanction for desilting a lake 
which was a source of water supply to the factory, was sought in August, 
1974 by the Director General, Ordnance Factories. While seeking Gov- 
ernment's approval i t  was stressed in October, 1974 by the Ministry of 
Defence that if there was to be no delay in the commissioning of the plants 
'X' and 'Y' within the warranty period available for these plants, the desil- 
ting operation should be completed not later than the middle of 1966. 
The  sanction of desilting the lake was accorded at an estimated cost of 
Rs. 1.50 crores in July, 1975 and according to this sanction, the desilting 
was to be completed by 150 weeks from the date of sanction-that is by 
'May, 1978. The Minisrry, however, stated (December, 1976) that the 
scheme for desilting of the lake was intended to increase the storage capa- 
city to ensure adequate water supply during the lean period for sustaining 
production at the present reduced level and was not in any way linked 
with the modernisation of the plants and would not augment water supply 
t o  the factory. 

2.12. It was initially planned that the mixed acid requirement for the 
new plant 'X' would be met from the existing acid mixing plant in the 
factory. However, when the representatives of firm 'C' visited India in 
early 1972 and the quality of mixed acid to be supplied to their plant was 
discussed with them, it became evident that the existing acid mixing facili- 
ties in the factory were inadequate to meet the quantity and quality 
requirements specified by the plant suppliers for guaranteeing product qua- 
lity. As the responsibility for supply of mixed acid to the quality required 
for plants to be supplied by the foreign firm was the responsibility of the 
purchaser, the modernisation of the existing mixed acid preparation system 
assumed great urgency for getting guaranteed quality product from the 
plants to be supplied by the firm. A contract was concluded by the Director 
General. Supplies and Disposals in July. 1974 with a firm for supply, erec- 
tion and commissioning ot the acid mixing plant at a cost of Rs. 134 
Mkhs. As per contract, the supply of the plant was to be completed and 
tbe plant kept ready for csmmissioning la: .t by October, 1975. The 



. . abmmtmtive approval for ntcts~~ry civil works was issued in AUOuElt, 
1974 at an astimated mst of Rs. 25.61 .lakbs. 

2.13. The civil works for the acid mixing plant were completed im 
January, 1976 and the plant was erected in May, 1976. 

2.14. It is reparted (March, 1977) that the pre-commissioning tr* 
in respect of both the plants 'X' and 'Y' are still in progm~. The Mink-, 
try stated (December, 1976) that there had been a setback in the desiltiag. 
work dud_ to serious failure of south-west monsoon as desilting was con-, 
tingent upon some minimum flow of water into the lake. 

2.15. Some of the unsatisfactory features noticed in the execution of the 
project that:- 

( 1 ) The scheme was not sanctioned as a whole including civil works 
in 1970; only the purchase of the plants was authorised at that 
p i n t  of time and the sanction to the scheme as a whole was 
accordecl in July, 1973. 

(2)  A co-ordinated programme of construction of civil works was 
not d r m n  up in accordance with requirements of warranty 
for the plants specified in the contract. 

(3) Provision was not made for the modernisation of the acid 
mixing plant till 1972. 

(4) The water requ;r:ment was not assessed in time and necessary 
works in this regard were not sanctioned till July, 1965. 

[Paragraph 11 of the Report of the Comptroller and Auditor General of 
India for the year 1975-76, Union Government (Defence Services)]. 

Replacement of plants 

2.16. Accordins to the Audit Paragraph, the proposal for replacement 
of plants 'X' and 'Y' envisaged an estimated cost of Rs. 507 lakhs includ- 
ing Rs. 102 lakhs for civil works, but subsequently, sanction for Rs. 1177.52 
takhs was accorded in July, 1973 for the project. The Committee desired 
to know the reasons for more than 100 per cent increase in the actual sanc- 
tion over the estimated cost. In a note, the Ministry of Defence (Depart- 
ment of Defence Production) have stated:- 

"The proposal made in 1970 pertained to replacement of old/out- 
lived plants 'X' and 'Y'. The replacement was planned under 
the financial powers vested in DGOF for normal Replacement 
and rRenewal. Proposals for placement of indents on DG- . r wcte cancuarrd in by tbe Finaace. The proposals indicated an 

t 



estimated expenditure for budgetary purposes as Rs. 507 lakhs. 
This Mication of likely expenditure was based on informal 
budgetary ofIers obtained from thee diilerent ffrms in 1967.. 
However, at the time of actual r a p o m  to the tender enqui- 
ries, the offers received from the same @mu (iac1Uflin.g the 
other firms) from whom budgetory estimate' received was al- 
most double. The rough indication of expenditure for civil 
worb was also based on the same. In the case of Chemical 
plants, the scope of civil works depends on the ultimate selec- ! 

tim of the plant and therefore, the expenditure on civil works 
depended on the design of buildings recammended by the 
supplier of the plants whose offer was finally accepted. 

At the time tender enquiries were floated, DGOF had asked the 
intending bidders to quote for the quality of mixed acids re- 
quired as well as equipment required for acid mixing system 
separately to suit the manufacture of industrial grades 'Y'. 
Having obtained the 'specifications of acid mixing system, the 
DGOF decided not to import the same but to dovetail the 
proposal with replacement of the entire mixing system required 
for the factory as a whole which was under examination for 
quite some time and hence the acid mixing plant was pro- 
cured indigenously and is functioning well. It may be added 
that aeid mixing plant is required at the factmy not only for 
meeting the requirements of plants 'X' but also for a number 
of other products in the factory. Taking into account that 
beside the procurement of plant, other ancillary units and 
services like acid mixing plant water, power, steams etc. aug- 
mentation of laboratory equipment, workshop facilities were 
also required, DGOF had two choices before him:- 

( i )  to process each item as an independent proposal under Re- 
placement and Renewal which was within his financial 
authority; 

(ii) to submit a consolidated proposal for sanction of the Minis- 
try of Defence so that the entire scheme is considered as 
a complete inter dependent system. 

DGOF opted for the second choice in order to process the 
entire interdependent requirements in a cogent manner. 

Therefore, it was considered prudent to consolidate all these facilities 
and present .them in the form of a statement of case to Gov- 
ernment and obtain Government sanction for the 'project' as 
a whole in July, 1972, for speedy implementation and better 



co-ordination instead of processing each case in a piecemeal 
bwis. The Government sanction for this as a whole was 
is& in July, 1975. 

'It may thus be seen that the initial estimate was a very rough indi- 
' ' cation of cost for a part of the scheme. This estimate was 

made for purpose of placing the indent on DGS&D for plants 
'X' and 'Y'. The final Government sanction was for a consoli- 
dated scheme based on actual contract price of the plants, 
Nler details of civil works, erection and commissioning costs, 
utilities, acid mixing facilities etc." 

2.17. The paragraph reveals a number of snags in the planning and 
execution of a defence project for the modemisation of processes of pro- 
duction of a factory by the replacement of the existing plants 'X' and 'Y' 
by modern ones, proposal for which was put up to the Director General, 
Ordnance Factories in May, 1970. The scheme was not sanctioned as a 
whole including civil works in 1970 as only the purchase of the plants was 
authorised at that point of time and the sanction to the scheme as a whole 
was accorded much later in July, 1973. 

2.18. Delay in execution of the civil works reveals that a co-ordinated 
programme of construction of civil works was not drawn up in accordance 
with the requirements of warranty for the plants specified in the contract. 
It is further seen from the Audit Paragraph that provision for the modemi- 
sation of the acid mixing plant was not made till 1972, and that too when 
the representatives of the foreign suppliers, visited India in early 1972 and 
on discussions with them, it was known that the existing acid mixing facili- 
ties in the factory were inadequate to meet the quantity and quality require- 
ments specified by the n1an+ suppliers for guaranteeing product quality. 
According to the Audit Paragraph even the water requirement was not 
assessed in time and necessary works in this regard were not sanctioned 
till July, 1975. 

2.19. The Committee pointed out that the proposal came in May, 1970 
but the Purchase Order was oiaced in November, 1971. The Committee, 
therefore, desired to know the justification for taking about I f years in 
finalisation of the oroposal. The Committee also desired to know the 
reasons for sanctioning and executing the project in a piecemeal manner. 
Explaining in -*no-ql the iustification for planning and execution of diffe- 
rent facets of ths Proiect. the Secretary (Defence Production) stated:- 

"The project was not a factory being built on a clean slate. The 
proposal was to modernise an existing factory and the prob- 
lem was to go about it without interruption of production be- 
cause at that time, this was the only factory that was pro- 



ducing propellants. The time taken between plant 'Y' and 
plant 'X' might appear to be unduly long, but the problem 
was that one could not undertake construction of plant Y 
until plant X and the first unit of plant Y were constructed 
and production satisfactorily established, because until then 
it was not possible to stop production in the old factory and 
start demolishing it and undertaking new construction there. 
It is like living in one part of the house and pulling down 
another part for rebuilding it. The starting of construction of 
unit 2 of plant Y was retarded by certain problems like blen- 
ders, the slippage of time on account of which was unavoidable. 
The blenders, in turn, delayed the satisfactory commissioning 
of plant X and first unit of plant Y. Time had to be spent in 
remedying certain defects before work on Plant Y, unit 2 could 
be undertaken." 

2.20. The Committee enquired whether the placement of indent on 26 
June, 1970 was done after ascertaining the estimated cost of the project 
and obtaining clearance from Government for the expenditure. In a note, 
the Ministry of Defence (Department of Defence Production) explained 
that release of the necessary Foreign Exchange and DGOF's recommenda- 
tions for accepting the particular firm's offer were approved by the Gov- 
ernment before conclusion of the contract. 

Delayed and Piece-meal sanction of  the Project 

2.21. Sanction for the project as a whole for Rs. 1177.52 lakhs (with 
a foreign exchange component of Rs. 519.60 lakhs) was accorded only 
in July, 1973 as per the following particulars:- 

(hs. in Lakhs ) 

Total +~re ign  
exchange 
compo- 
nent. - -- 

''ant 'X' and 'Y' duly erected and commissioned. . . 811.41 508.59 

Modernisation of acid mixing system . . . . . 119.45 8-47 

Mi~cellancous, maintenance items. transport, equipmrnt ctr. . . 24".5 2.08 

Services forming Director General Ordnance Factories responsihilitv 20.37 . . 
Civil works and scrvicrs formin- Military Engineer Srrvices' respnnsi- 

hility (excluding cost of water supply from an rxiuting reservoir) 187.20 

Planning and securitv staff training . . . . . 14 .56  0 .46  -- 
TOTAL : . . . . . . . . 1177.52 51o.60 

. ---.- -- 



2.22. Tbe Committee desired to know as to how the contract for pro- 
cur&& of the new plants was concluded in November, 1971, even before 
the total cost of tbe project was sanctioned by Government. The Direc- 
t'& General, ~rdn'ance Factories explained tw follows:- 

"If I may explain, first is the selection of the plant. With the 
selection of the plant, we come to know the quality and the quan- 
tity of the inputs required. The main parameters on civil 
works, as I told you, came after six months, depending on the 
input requirements. We have to see what facilities exist and 
what extra facilities are required. Therefore, for renewal and 
replacement of portion of our existing factory before the selec- 
tion of the plant it is not possible to plan all the facilities 
which go with it. They will take a little time. But the main 
critical path in the project is the civil works. We have to see 
whether these other facilities which come in between are dove- 
tailed with the main project and that the main project does not 
get delayed. The analysis shows that although piecemeal sanc- 
tions were obtained, the main critical path was not loss sight 
of." 

2.23. The Department of Defence Production have subsequently fur- 
nished a note at the instance of the Committee, indicating the background 
for conclusion of the contract for procurement of the new plants in Navem- 
ber, 1971 even before the .total cost of the project was sanctioned. The note 
further explains the reasons for taking one and half years to issue the 
sanction for civil works after finalization of the contract for procurement 
of the plants. The note reads as follows: 

"The plants were procured under normal (Renewal and Replace- 
ment) grant. Since these are replacement plants and the DGOF 
is empowered to place indent, Government approval for 
necessary commi'm-nt, release of FE and the supplier recom- 
mended by DG3F was obtained. The Government sanction 
of July. 1973 was for the consolidated proposal inclusive of 
this and other RR schemes like Acid Mixing system, along wilh 
augmentation of services and other items of expenditure like 
civil works, custom. ocean freight, erection and commissioning 
etc. Details of these expenditures were available after the con- 
tract for main plants (for which indents were placed earlier) 
was concluded in Nov. '71. 

By placing the indent for the main plants and concluding the con- 
tract under DGOF RR betterment powers earlier, we had 
actually saved consi&rable time in executing this scheme. 



As qguds Civil w*, the .time frame was assessed as follows:- 
Contract date (&cdi~e)-142 
Sitting Board for Civil Works- 
(after receipt of CW data frum the firm)-7/72 
Issue of Administrative approval-12/72 

Civil work data are normally made available by the plant suppliers 
especially for chemical plants not earlier than six months from 
the effective contract date. As soon as these were received 
Sitting Board was held in 7/72 as scheduled. A/E was received 
in 10/72. After suitable scrutiny and seeking some clari- 
fications the A/A was issued in 4/73. 

The MES were however, given a go-ahead sanction in 4/72 itself 
for Rs. 45 lakhs." 

2.24. Justifying the concept of piecemeal sanction, the Secretar)' 
(Defence Production) stated that "piecemeal sanction was inherent in the 
very nature of things in such projects." He further added: 

"What was sanctioned, in crl-r nqt to lose time, were some preli- 
minary works which were obviously necessary, and then the 
go-ahead sanction was given in April, 1972." 

2.25. Explaining the position about the go-ahead approval given in 
1972, the Engineer-in-Chief stated : 

"Firstly, we get administrative approval and then we go to tender. 
In his case, money has been given and we have gone in for 
preliminary works." 

Execution oj Civil Works 

2.26. According to the Audit Paragraph, with a view to take full advan- 
tage of 12 months' warranty period after satisfactory commissioning, the 
Director General, Ordnance Factories gave to the Military Engineer Ser- 
vices, in December, 1971, programme for completion of civil works pro- 
posing the commissioning of plant X in August, 1975. Unit I of plant Y 
in June, 1975 and Unit I1 of plant Y in January, 1978. (for preceding 
stages see Audit Paragraph). This time schedule was not agreed to by the 
Military Engineer Services authorities who indicated in January, 1972 that 
completion of Shell stage of Phase I (Plant 'X' and Unit I of Plant 'Y') 
and Phase XI (Unit I1 of Plant 'Y') works would require 25 months and 
29 months respectively instead of 16 months from ~e date of issue of 
administrative approval envisaged by the Director General,. Ordance Fac- 
tories. 



2.27. The Civil Works were, however, completed as follows against the 
dates of completion stipulated in the works contracts:- 

G v i l  Works for Stipulated Actual 
date date of 

of comple- comple- 
tion as per tion 
the con- 
tracts of 
civil 
works 

Plant 'X' . . . .  . Septem- June 
ber 1976 
1975 

Plant 'Y' . . . . . . .  . Decem- March 
her I974 I975 

2.28. The Committee desired to know the reasons for not consulting 
the MES while working out the estimated period for completion of civil 
works and for delay in the execution of the civil works. The Secretary 
@fence Production) explained:- 

"The DGOF's organisation made what in their judgement was the 
best estimation of the time that would be necessary for the 
supporting civil works at the time of negotiating the purchase 
the plant. As it happened, after the contract was made and 
the matter was turnd over to MES, the MES came to the view 
that the time schedule that had been assumed in the headquar- 
ters of D W F  was not capable of being realised as there were 
some special problems. We agree that it would have been 
very desirable if at the time of purchasing the plant itself we 
were in a position to know precisely the time required by con- 
sulting the engineers concerned. But this poses 50 many 
practical problems. The engineer is not in a position to give 
any estimation either of cost or of time until he has known all 
about the plant that is going to be delivered. The plant poses 
certain demands of its own regarding specifications and other 
details that engineers have to follow. It is also not easy for 
the purchaser of a plant to tell the suppliers., "I need time to 
go back to the engineers and find out from them the time 
rzquired for civil construction. I will come back to you after 
a few months and finalise the contract." That is not easy, thouc~h 
I shodd not say, it is not possible. I would hasten to add h x  
that in the light of this particular experience, we are examining 



how best we can treamline the system so tbat this possible dis- 
harmony as between the calendars assumed by the two parties- 
.DGOF and ME9 can ,be avoided in future." 

2.29 Explaining the reasons for delay in selecting the plant and execu- 
tion of civil works, the Director General, Ordnance Factories stated as 
~ollows :- 

"We placed an indent on the DGS&D on 26.6.1970 and various 
quotations came. At that time we sent two officers abroad t o  
judge which of the plants will actually produce the things which 
we want to make. Accordingly a contract was ultimately 
concluded on 15.1 1.1971. At that stage we prepared our- 
selves a schedule which is reflected in the Audit Para and with 
that Schedule we went to the engineers. Within two months' 
time the engineers gave their reactions and against 27 months 
which we provided for, they provided certain time schedule. 
But in reality they completed the work in 30 months. If tile 
problem of leakage of blenders had not come up, the enginezrj 
would have done the work in time. So, my contention is t!n: 
DGOF's ~lannine was based on certain experience in other 
plants and in reality the engineers did come to the help with 
the result that the net delay would have been three months if 
the snag of blenders had not been there." 

The witness further added: 

"When the contract was about to be concluded, at that point of time 
we told the plant suppliers that "within a period of six months 
you must give us the parameters." The firm had to do it, 
but without waiting for the firm to give us the details in six 
months' time, we went ahead with our preparations. The con- 
tract was signed in November, 1971. We started with the 
planning of civil works. The engineers did not get all the 
details from the firm till December 1972, hut they went by 
the previous experience. In January, 1972 they gave a 
revised time schedule. Thereafter, what happened was, in 
July, 1972 sitting Board was held and in August, 1972 the 
sitting Board was approved. In April 1973 administrative 
approval was given and thereafter the construction started. T h i s  
was all foreseen. We did not have any consultants with us. 
The DGOF went by past experience and the actual experience 
has shown that we have not gone very much wrong in our 
assumptions. It was all foreseen before we launched thu 
project ." 



' 2.30. In a note, the Department has stated that Wo-ahead sanction" 
for preliminary works was issued on 28th April 72. Administrative 
Approval for the work was issued on 23rd April 73. Asked to state the 
Teasons for delay in the issue of Government sanction, the Department have 
stated that it was due to clarifications required by Finance in regard to 
schedule rates from the Engineers before sanction could be issued. Chrono- 
logical sequence of events leading to issue of the Administrative Approval 
%as been indicated below : - 
1'1 t o  14th July 72 I Sitting Board for the works was held. 
.rq Oct 72 Approximate Estimates (AE) w.s submitted by the Chief 

Engineer. Certain observations were raised by Army Hqrs. 
(Engineer-in-Chief Branch) on the  AE. 

,2nd Nov 72 General Manager, Factory 'X' indicated a few major and 
miner changes t o  be made in AE. 

rg Dec 72 1nco.npliance to the Observations of E-in-C's Branch and 
the indications of GM, CFA. Chief Engineer recast the 
AE and submitted it. 

q j r d  Jan 73 AE scrutinised by E-in-C Branch and sent to Ministry of 
Finance DFA (W). 

.22nd March 73 DFA W) raised some observation5 which were replied by 
E-m- b s Branch. 

-zgApril 73 Administrative Approval issued. 

The contract for construction of civil works was entered into on 
10.10.73 and the prescribed date of completion of works w a s  15.9.1975. 
I t  is stated that originally there was no need for request for extension of 
completion date. But after testing the blenders and when they were found 
,leaking, the civil works were completed only in December, 1976. 

Erection of Plants 

2.31. It is seen from the Audit praagraph that the factory was authorised 
by the Ministry to conclude two contracts in August, 1974 with a firm for 
erection of Plant 'X' and one unit of Plant 'Y' at an estimate cost of Rs. 29.87 

'lakhs. The erection of Plant 'X' commenced during October 1974 
and was completed by Qptember 1975. The erection of unit of Plant 
'Y was completed by April, 1975. After erection of Plant 'X' and 'Y' 
(one Unit), it was found that concrete blenders were leaking and this 
delayed commissioning trials. The Ministry intimated Audit in December 
1976 that the concrete blenders of Plants 'Y' were satisfactorily rectified 
by June 1976. Of the 8 concrete blenders for Plant 'X' rectification of 
7 blenders was stated to hove been coinpleted in October, 1976 (including 
one under test) and one was awaiting rectification. 

2.32. The Ministry of Defence had also intimated Audit in December, 
1976 about the remedial steps proposed to be taken to overcome the difficul- 
fies presented by the leakage of blenders. 



"It has also been' decided to coat tliese blenders with indigenous 
Epoxy Paint as an additional safety measure to avoid future 
leak$. This would of necessity be a source of some delay but 
in the intekst of safety is considered unavoidable." 

2.33. The Committee desire to know the reasons for leakage in con- 
crete blenders, particularly whether the leakage was due to defective spec- 
fication or defective construction. The officiating Engineer-in-Chief 
ex~lainkd hc! position as follows: 

"The blender is a horizontal type of a half reservoir of reinforced 
concrete. Besides this, it is 7th meters in length, the bottom 
of the blender is off the floor by 3.6 meters and its diameter is 
3.8 meters. Through this goes the stirrer. The capacity 
of the blenders in the case of Unit X which has 8 blenders is 
68 cu.m. each and that of unit Y-I which has 4 blenders 80 

cu.m. each. This is for the first time that horizontal blenders 
of re-inforced concrete have been used. This is the fact I 
wanted to mention." 

2.34 Explaining the position about the designs and specifications of 
the blenders, the witness added: 

"As far as designs and specifications are concerned, they are given 
by the plant suppliers. We are used to this sort of work. The 
work was done. When we were working on it, we had understood 
that something more viscous than water was to be stored 
inside the blenders. Some of the specifications which we did 
adhere to-I will just mention for your informstion are that the 
mix for the concrete was designed to give a compressive 
strength of 270 kgs. per square centimetres. This conforms 
to 1:1:3 which is a very p o d  mix and we kept the water 
cement ratio to 0.42. From our point of view, it is technically 
appropriate and correct. However, when the work was com- 
pleted, inside these blenders we did rendering of cement and 
sand mortar in there coats. The difference between concrete 
used in blender and the water tanks is that in the water tanks 
we invariably use water-proof compound upto 2 to 3 per cent 
of cement, whereas in blenders due to its non-cornpatability with 
the chemicals it was not used. Instead rendering was done in- 
side. In this particular case because of the explosive nature 
of the contents we had to be very careful because the slightest 
leakage of water would result in damage and explosion 



The cost of these blenders was only around Rs. 2.70 lakhs. We 
commenced the work in February 1974 and we completed the 
work in December 1974. We did the testing in March 1975, 
The testing was done by keeping the water in these blenders for 
one week. We found that leaka~es had appeared and wet 
patches had also shown up." 

2.35. In a subsequent written note, the Ministry have stated: 

"When the blenders were put on trial, leakage was noticed. This 
was investigated and rectified by the MES. According to the 
MES, it does not appear that there were any defects in the 
specifications adopted by them. Standard specifications in 
conjunction with the special specifications given by 
firm 'C' were adopted for construction. This was the first 
time that the blenders of this size and design were constructed 
for processing explosives. The design was complicated be- 
cause the blenders were to be constructed with hemispherical 

bottom and with horizontal shaft assembly, bearing housing 
etc. below the level of slurry. No leakage whatsoever could be 
accepted because the ingress of explosives in the contrete could 
be grave hazard. In normal concrete construction, minor 
leakages at first fill in^ are not uncommon which get sealed 
gradually with use. In this case, this could not be accepted. 
Hence, suitable rectification was undertaken." 

2.36 Explaining the steps taken to rectify the leakage in the blenders, 
the Engineer-in-Chief explained : 

"Immediately when. we realised these defects. the factory authori- 
ties said that this was very dangerous. Then we said: 

'All right, we shall see what is the best method of rectifying.' 

In many of the RCC tanks it is not uncommon that there are leak- 
ages. But they stop on their own after a period of time. 
For rectification we suggested that we could apply three coarse 
of sodium silicate inside. Anyway we were told bv the fac- 
tory authorities that it is not acceptable because there is in- 
compatibil j between the sodium silicate and explosives. We 
suggested a high polymer mix and also gunniting the internal 
surface. The latter was accepted and ultimately a firm from 
Madras completed the work. But it is a time-consuming pro- 
cess because for each process you have to work to see that 
there is no further leakage. Aher that we have to test it 
again. So. it is a time-consuming process as there were 12 
blenders and we were to ensure that inside the body of the 

! 



blenders no parLicle of the mixgets lodged. This is impotrant 
because any little particle of this very high explosive being 
lodged time could be a potential danger. So, we had to be 
very very careful in doing this. We finally completed this; 
and it took us a fair amount of time. It was completed in 
June and October 1966; and at the end of it, we had a final 
clearance report from the Vikram Sarabhai Space Centre. So 
far, we are lucky, because nothing has gone wrong. We are 
lairly confident that the treatment which we have given and 
which has prevented the leakage, will suffice." 

2.37 The Committee desired to know the total cost incurred in carrying 
out the rectification and painting works with specific clarification 
whether the epoxy coaling was required to be done periodically and if so, 
at what intervals and cost? In a note the Department of production informed 
as follows: 

"Total cost of rectification is approximately Rs. 2.2 lakhs. 

The epoxy coating is to be done periodically for safety considera- 
tions. The interval at which it will have to be done is to be 
assessed based on practical knowledge after working for some 
time. So far, the epoxy painting has withstood for 9 months 
without any apparent damage." 

2.38 On an enquiry, whether these blenders wer,: available indigenously, 
the Enginecr-in-Chief explained: 

"These RCC blenders of horizental type were built for the first time, 
by us. We feel quite confident of taking up this job. We 
have sufficient experience of RCC work. We feel confident 
in this particular case." 

2.39 Elucidating further, Director-General, Ordnance Factories, stated: 

"Most of these blenders are made of stainless steel. In this parti- 
cular case, we have made out of RCC. They are much chea- 
per. In many cascs. we came across certain troubles but 
we solved them." 

Incomplete Utilisatbn of Warranty Clause due to delays in the completion 
o f  the Projecr. 

.h 
2.40 According to the Audit Paragraph, the warranty period available 

for plants 'X' and 'Y' under the contract was for a period of one year from 
the date of satisfatory commissioning, subject to the condition that the 



warranty would expire at the end of 3 years from the date of the iast delivery 
of equipment. 

2.41 Plants 'X* and 'Y' were supplied as follows: 

"Plant Actual date of 
completion of 

S ~ P P ~ Y  -- --- -- --- - 
'X' . , . . . .  July 1973 

"Y' First supply . . . . . July 1974. 

Sxond supply . . . . . . February 1976. 

The warranty periods available for Plants 'X' and 'Y' under the contract with reference to 
the last delivery of the equipment were to expire as follows : 

Plant 'X' (Units I & I1 ) . . . . . . - J ~ Y  1976 

P lant6Y' (Uni t I )  . . . . . . .  Julv I977 
Plai~t 'Y' (Unit 11) . . . . . . . February, 1979." 

2.42 After erection of Plants 'X' and 'Y' (one unit) it was found that 
concrete blenders were leaking and this delayed commissioning trials. 

2.43. ?he Comnlittee desired to know as to when did they beconle aware 
of the provisions of warranty. The Director General, Ordnance Factories 
explained : 

"When we float the enquiry, at that time itself we ask for the 
warranty. Normally they give about 12 to 18 months 
warranty. We foresaw we are working in a difficult terrain, 
working with a part of the building knocked off to accommo- 
date new construction and the other part of the building func- 
tioning. Therefore, we insisted that we should have 12 
months warranty from the date of commissioning to make sure 
that the Plant functions efficiently and whatever money is 
spent is utilized usefully. Eventually we approached the !irm 
to extend the warranty by another six months, which covered 
the final run of the plant." 

2.44 Explaining the actual scope of the realisation of the warranty 
clause. The Secretary (Defence Product~on) explained: 

"If you look (at) . . . .the calendar that the DGOF had issued, you 
will find that we were almost within the warranty for the 
first item, well within the warranty for the second and third. 
I am talking of 12 months after commissioning. The zssump- 
tion, on the basis of which the warranty had been initially 



accepted, as it happened, were not realised for the reasons 
which 1 have explained earlier." 

2.45. Elaborating the position further, the Director General, Ordnance 
Factories, staked: 

" . . . .we try and negotiate for the longest possible warranty. The 
period of warranty can change from agreement to agreement. 
But very seldom it exceeds 36 months from the date of supply 
or 12 months from the date of commissioning. In this case, 
because of our special approach, we could get an extension 
of six months, beyond the warranty period contracted for." 

2.46. The Committee pointed out that because of the delay in the 
completion of civil works etc., the warranty period of 36 months expired 
before the expiry of 12 months from the date of commissioning and the 
difficulty could not be overcome by obtaining extension of warranty by six 
months. Clarifying the position, the Secretary (Defence Production) 
explained : 

" . . . . . .The facts are that the commissioning of the plant took 
place in July, and July is the month when the 36 months ran 
out. So, although the 36 months had run out we werz able to 
persuade them to extend it by 6 months." 

2.47. The Committee asked for a copy of the letter received from 
the firm conveying agreement to extend warranty period together with 
the following information:- 

(i) Dates, from and upto which the warranty period was extend- 
ed. 

(ii) Dates on which the plants were commissioned. 

In a note the Department of Defence Production have stated as 
follows:- 

"Copy of the firm's letter extending the warrant;/ period i< enclos- 
ed (Appendix I*). 

Dates regarding warranty/commissioning of the plants arc as 
follows:- 

-A- -- . -- - --- -- -- . -- - --- - -- - - - - 
Plant 'X' . . . July r976 7-7-1977 31-rz-rg77 
Plant 'Y' . - . July1977 27-7-77 31-12-1977.'' 

*Not printed in the report. 



Augmentation o j water supply 

2.48. It is seen from Audit paragraph that the sanction accorded in 
July, 1973 included provision for treatment and filtration of water at a 
cost of Rs. 14.87 lakhs (subsequently amended to Rs. 19.63 lakhs) but 
did not include any scheme for augmentation of water supply. I t  was, 
however, assessed in April, 1974 that with the completion of the 'new 
projects' the requirement of water supply would increase to 60 lakh 
gallons per day at the peak level of production (including 8 lakh gallons 
for other units in that area) against the current availability of 23 lakh 
gallons per day d fresh water and 10 lakh gallons per day to be pro- 
cured by recycling for which prclvision existed in the factory. To meet 
the additional requirements of 27 lakh gallons, sanction ior desilting a 
lake, which was a source of water supply to the factory, was sought in 
August, 1974 by the Director General, Ordnance Factories. While seek- 
ing Government's approwalj, it was stressed in October, 11974 by the 
Ministry of Defence that if there was to be no delay in the commissioning 
of the plants 'X' and 'Y' within the warranty period available for these 
plants, the desilting operation should be completed not later than the 
middle of 1976. The sanction for desilting the lake was accorded at an 
estimated cost of Rs. 1.50 crores in July, 1975 and according to this sanc- 
tion, the desilting was to be completed by 150 weeks from the date of 
sanction-that is by May. 1978. 

2.49. The Committee asked the reasons for not assessing the require- 
ment of water for the new plants keeping in view the requirements indicat- 
ed by the suppliers initially at the time of processing the indent. The 
Committee also sought explanation from the Government for taking more 
than a year to sanction the project for desilting a lake when the need was 
urgent. 'In a note, the Department of Defence Production have explain- 
ed:- 

"The question of getting requirements of water at the time of place- 
ment of the indent did not arise. The requirement of services 
like water, steam, power, compressed air, are indicated by 
the plant suppliers only at the time of submission of quota- 
tions against tender enquiries. Again, fuller details of these 
are supplied by the firm ultimately selected after conclusion 
of contract. Immediately after conclusion of contract, the 
requirements were assessed and provision was made in the 
Government letter for treatment and filteration of water from 
one source (Mynella). For filterationltreatment facilities 
from other source (Kateri) separate sanction was obtained. 



Desilting of Kateri Lake was necessarily independent of the deci- 
sion to procure plants 'X' and 'Y'. Desilting of the lakes 
is anj adequate insurance against dry spells encountered hi 
Nilgiris and to ensure s,upply of raw water during lean periods. 
The silting up has occurred aver a period of nearly 50 years 
on account of general conditions prevailing in Nilgiris result- 
ing in soil erosion. 

The chronological sequence of events leading to the issue of Ad- 
ministrative approval for the desilting scheme is given below: 

1XOF caw filr forwardrd to Awociat~d Finanrc f c  I 
approval. 

E ~ t i r n ~ t r \  clrared by DFA (E'vs.). Mertiile hrld in 
SPCV. lDI'\'\ rr ( m  OII 30-1-1q75. 

.4l'tCr clrararrrt hy FA (DS) the filr was ~ u h n ~ i t t c d  to 
S x y .  (Expenilic w:,' who drrirrd crl tain informatim 
and rc+rrc.tl tl:c filr to Ordnancr Factnry CMl 
oil 6-3-1975 

Inforn~;tti:m rrquircd by Secy.-'Expenditur.c.) war fi 1.- 
r~i.;h,.rl I,\. C)rtlinancv Factor) Crll and the caw rc fcrr- 
ed to .\finicrr.v of Finance. (!)~.fc*ncrI/(Ptojrcrs\ cm 
1-+-1975. Caw thrn rc.frrrrd to Enginrrr in Chief's 
Ilranch on I 1 .\pril. 1!)7j. 

T ~ I -  caw was fitrthrr discuswd in a meeting held by 
Srcy. (111') on 7-6-1975 a11d filr referred to  
Financr on 16-6-1:)75. 

i\tiministrativr approval was i,surcl." 

The Ministry of Dcfence informed Audit in December, 1976:- 

"that the schcn~e for &silting of the lake was intended to increase 
the storagc capacity to ensure adequate water supply during 
the lean period for sustaining production at the present reduc- 
ed level and was not in any way linked with the modernisa- 
tion of the Plants and would not augment water supply to 
the factory." 

2.50. Audit were also informed by the Ministry of Defence in Decem- 
ber, 1976:- 

"The estimated capacity of the cxisting pipe lines is 12 lakh gal- 
lons per day approximately. To convey the additional 61- 



tered water, provision has been made for an additional pipe- 
line of 14" diameter within the scope of the proposed scheme 
for augmentation of water treatment and supply capacity. . ." 

2.51. Referring to the aforesaid correspondence of the Ministry with 
Audit, the Committee asked the Ministry to reconcile the aforesaid posi- 
tion with the assessment made in April, 1974 regarding requirements for 
additional quantity of water. The Committee also desired to know the 
details of the proposed scheme indicated to Audit in December, 1976 
together with the expenditure involved therein. In a note, the Department 
of Defence Production have stated as follows:- 

"Water is supplied to the factory from two sources. For filter/ 
treatment of water from one source (Mynella) necessary pro- 
visian was made in the Government letter issued in July, 
1973. This scheme was completed in July, 1975. For aug- 
menting filteration and treatment facilities from the other 
source (Kateri) and laying of pipelines to carry the additional 
filtered water treatment after the augmentation, a separate 
proposal was put up. 

The scheme provides for provision of treatment and filteration for 
additional quantity of water and laying of additional pipe- 
lines for carrying extra quantity of filtered water to the fac- 
tory. The scheme was sanctioned in September, 1977 for 
about Rs. 60 lakhs. It is expected to be completed by Sep- 
tember, 1979." 

2.52. The Committee desired to know whether the existing arrange- 
ments of water are sufficient for securing optimum production from the 
modernised plants and if not, the steps taken or proposed to be taken to  
meet the situation. The Committee also enquired about the approximate 
date by which the decilting of the lake was likely to be completed. In 
a note, the Department of Defence Production have explained:- 

T h e  Unit 11 of Plant 'Y' is anticipated to be commissioned by 
May, 1980. The scheme for augmentation of filteration and 
treatment facilities at Kateri is expected to be completed by 
September, 1 979. With the completion of this in September, 
1979, sufficient treated water will be available not only for secu- 
ring optimum production from the new plants including Unit 
Tl of Plant 'Y' which is scheduled to be commissioned from 
January to May, 1980 but for running all the plants of the 
factory at optimum capacity. The quantum of raw water 



available and purification facilities werelare adequate for 
phase I when commissioned in July, 1977 and for running 
factory at about 50 to 60 per cent of full capacity. 

Desilting of Kateri Lakes is likely to be completed by end of 1979. 
Hence the quantum of raw water and purification facilities 
will be adequate by the time Phase I1 is commissioned, for 
meeting the full requirements of the factory unless unfore- 
seenhnlikely abnormal dry spells are encountered." 

Modernisation of mixed acid system. 

2.53. It is seen from the Audit pa&raph that it was initially planned 
that the mixed acid requirement for the new plant 'X' would be met from 
the existing acid mixing plant in the factory. However, when the repre 
sentatives of firm 'C' visited India in early 1972 and the quality of fixed 
acid to bc supplied to their plant was discussed with them, it became evi- 
dent that the existing acid mixing facilities in the factory were inadequate 
to meet the quantity and quality requirements specified by the plant Sup 
pliers for guaranteeing product quality. A contract was concluded by the 
Director General, Supplies and Dispowls in July, 1974 with a firm for 
supply, erection and commissioning of the acid mixing plant at a cost of 
Rs. 134 lakhs. 

2.54. As per contract, the supply of the Plant was to be completed 
and the plant kept ready for commissioning latest by October. 1975. The 
administrative approval for necessary civil works was issued in August, 
1974 at an estimated cost of Rs. 25.61 lakhs. 

2.55. The civil works for the acid mixing plant were completed in 
January, 1976 and the Plant was erected in May, 1976. 

2.56. Thc Committee enquired as to why the need for modernisation 
of the existing acid mixing syctcm was not cxnmined at the time of techni- 
cal scrutiny of the tender. in consultation with the suppliers. who are re- 
ported to have indicated all such requirement< initially. In a note, the 
Department of Defence Prcduction have stated:- 

"The need for modernisation of existing acid mixing system was 
examined at the time of technical scrutiny of the tenders when 
received in August, 1971. Even with thn best possible pian- 
nino and technical knowlrdge, some anfwxecn prnblems do 
arise whenever modernication of a factory more speciallv a 



chemical plant producing diverse set of product mix is under- 
taken. In this particular case, even as per original planning, 
provision was made in the tender enquiry itself to ask the 
plant suppliem the requirements that would arise in respect 
of acid mixing system. In  response to this, after the quota- 
tions for the main plant were received and during subse- 
quent discussion in August, 1971, it emerged that the plant 
would impose some stringent acid quality requirements which 
would call for suitable provision in the matter. 

About that time. the factory was indcpendcntly examining a pro- 
posal for replacing the acid mixing sysrcnl which caters not 
merely to the plant 'X' but for the o:her elcmcnts of the fac- 
tory as well. In thc background of the requirement which 
came to  light for the plant 'X' being ob!ained. it was felt that 
that it would be more economical as well as prudent to in- 
tegrate the overall requirements of the factory on this account, 
and proposals were pursued thereafter accordingly." 

2.57. As the inadequacy of the acid mixing facilities was known in 
early 1972, the Committee desired to know the reasons for delay in con- 
clusion of the contract for supply, crcction and commiisionkig of the plant 
in July, 1974. In a nntc, the Dcpartment of Dcfencc Production have 
stated:- 

"As soon as it was known that acid mixing facilities would also 
require modernisation. a full statement of case for the 'project' 
including this as well as other items of expcnditurc was made 
in July 1972 and G:wernmcnt sanction was issued in Jd:i 1973. 
Action was taken imniediatcly thercaftcr for procurenlent of 
the acid mixin2 plant as a turnkey pmjxt .  Since ths contract 
to be concluded for acid mixinc was for a turnkey offer for 
design, supply. erection and comrni5sioning, it was nrcessary 
to have preliminar:~ technical discussion/clarificationn; with the 
firm and select suitable supplier. 

It will be appreciated +hat a period of one year for conclusion 
of contract from the date of Government sanction is the mini- 
mum period required for such cases. Further, the erection/ 

commission;ng of an acid mixinq 5ystem were so dovetailed as 
to be ready by the time Plant 'X' will bc rcacly for cornmission- 
ing." 

2.58. The Committee desired to know the steps taken riqht from the 
beginning to achieve complete coordination on the various facets of the 



project viz. civil works, augmentation of water, modernisation of acid 
mixing plants etc. In a note, the Department of Production have stated: 

"The various steps taken right from the beginning to achieve com- 
plete coordination on the various facets of the projects are 
enumerated below : 

( i )  Civil works including augmentation of quality ~ ~ a ! e r .  

After signing of the contract in November 197 1, DGOF worked out 
a time schedule for civil works based on their ~.xperience in 
similar projects with a view to get the full warranty uf 12 
months after commissioning and taking over of the plants. l h i s  
time schedule was forwarded to E-in-C by DGOF vide letter 
No. 460/P/EP-1 dated 15- 12- 197 1 addressed to tbc Director 
of Works, New Delhi for planning the civil work\. When 
Director of Works (DP) had expressed their difliculty to adhere 
to the time schedule, the following steps were taken in con- 
sultation with the Engineers for completion of ci\ il work\. 

(a) A go-ahead sanction of Rs. 45 lakhs was issued in thc month 
of April 1972 for demolition of existing building/site 
clearance etc. and for siting the ncw plant and other con- 
nected preliminary works. 

(h) It was decided that MES will complete the b.~ild'n;i in shell 
stage and hand over I:? factory for erection/instnllation of 
machinery. On completion of erection. M?S \\.ill do thc 
finishing civil works. The cmnstruction of b~~ildingq in shcll 
stage was planned in such a way that whcn ciu'l con;tructicln 
was in progress in on: building erection of machincry wcmld 
be carried out in other buildinp. Bv resortin,: to this dove- 
tailing of the works between factxy and MES. i t  bccarne 
poss;Me to reduce the werall time required fvr civil work<. 

(c) A close liaison was kept at site be'ween factory inrmaynent 
and representatives of Enginecrs for ach;cvin~ the tinic 
schedule mutuall:~ agreed upon. 

(d) Periodical nieetings wcrc held among factor1 n 4 i c m  Fwi -  
ncers/Chief Engineer. in thc office of GMICFA to rcview 
the progress of civil wwks/erection and to ~riodifv m y  
schedule of works as necessary1cup:dite thc conipletion. 

(c) Regarding nuementation of supdv of trented \\.ate. i t  is st.~ted 
that when deficiency of  26.4 lskh eallonq pcr da-7 was f~3und 



it was decided to meet this deficiewy by providing additional 
fihration capacity and facilities at Bynella source and Kateri. 

(f) After receipt of the Government sanction in July 1973, for 
the projects including the Acid Mixing Plant, procurement 
action for Acid Mixing Plant was progressed in highest 
prior it:^. DGS&D placed A/T for Ac'd Mixing Plant in 
July 1974. 

(g) It was rcalised that if the sitting Board for the civil works for 
Acid Mixing Plant was to be convened after the conclusion 
on contract for the Plant, the acid mixing plant would not 
be installcd/con~miss'oned in time for making available thc 
Mixed Acids for starring the commissioning of Plant 'X'. 
Therefore, thc fo:lov,ing steps were taken to expedite the 

civil worhs. A p w h e a d  sanction fo- pn amwnt I,? Rs. 4.93 
lakhs was acmrtled for sitc c learmx.  demolition of old 
buildkys ctc. Based on thr specification findiscti hv us for 
Acid Mixing Plant. thc rcq.~ired civil works dat ,~ were mad: 
available to ME5 and sitting Board was convcned and the 

AE/revised AE was forwarcicd by MES to W,OF in March 
1974. 

AA for the civil works was issued in August 1974, i.e.. within 
month after conclusion of con!ract for Acid Mixin.! Plant. 
The Civil works at site was qtarted in January 19?5 and was 
completed by February. 1976. Th.: ercction nf thc plant 
equipmen's etc. started in June 1975 was p r ~ o w s e d  side 
b-7 side with civil work5 and was completed in hf:u.ch 1976. 

ITence it will be secn that several measures were taken for expcdit- 
ing the procurement and crection of Acid Mixing Plant and 
construction of civil works to cnsure that the plant was ready 
prior to undcrtakinn thc commissionine trials in P!ant 'X'." 

2.59. The Committee enq~~i rcd  w'lethcr accordino to thc Ministry there 
was m y  scope for hotter coordin.\tinn hetwccq th- cmcc-ned Departments. 
The Secretary. Defence Produ~tion explained : 

"There could have bccn prrliminarv consultnt'ons be'wecn the two 
departments when thc wOF cmharkcd upon, th:. ptrchaw of 
two plants and made his own calendar." 

2.60. From the facts placed before the Committee in writing as well as 
during evidence, the Committee amnot help concluding that the project 
for Modernisation of Processes of Production in a Factory wns ill-planned 



and its execution was not very well coordinated resulting in delays ranging 
from 24 months to 30 months in commissioning of various units of the 
plants and exceeding practically the entire warranty period for the p h t s  
available under the agreements with the suppliers. That there was con- 
current loss of production needs hardly be emphasised. Some of the not- 
able features which the Committee would like to highl'ght are indio~ted 
in the following paragraphs. 

2.61. To begin with, the project was estimated, in May 1970, to cost 
Rs. 507 lakhs. This estimate was, according to the Department of Defence 
Production, "only an estimated expenditure for budgetary pwpose" which 
wms based on "informal budgetary offers obtained from d;fkrent firms." 
The fact that at the time of actual response to tender enyhies the very 
firms from whom the "informal budgetarv offers'' were ob!ained quoted a 
price which was almost double of what was indicated on initial inquiry, 
indicates the perfunctory manner in which the origim31 estimates were pre- 
pared. The Committee can at this stage only regret the lark of seriousness 
in preparing the original estimates for the project. 

2.62. Another explanation given for the variation between the initial 
estimate and the find sanction is that wherrac the iAtial estimate was only 
for placing the indent for plants on DGS&r), the final qcwtion was for 
actual contract price of the plant$, fuller deta:ls of civil works, erection 
and commissioning costs, utilisaiion and acid mi~irte facil'ties. Thlt the 
anal sanction should be for an amount almost double of the initial edimate 
is a sad reflection on project e4mation. 

2.63. The contract for the procurement of plants wns ronchded in 
November 1971 but the sanctioa for the project as a \vhole wa.: accorded 
in July 1973. Thus, it took the Dcpnrtment of Defence Pr~inctirtn nearly 
18 months to collect the necessaw details for according wnction. The 
Committee consider this as an unduly long period. Thev fed h t  if the 
sanction could bwe been issued earlier. the civil works wo~dd hwe started 
earlier and the Department would not hnve co'nnnd itself in !!p none-too- 
happy predicament whereundcr the execution of the project hnd to he spilled 
over the warranty period fixed for the plants. 

2.64. According to the time schedule drawn an hv the Director Gene- 
ral, Ordnance Factories and piven in Dcremher 1971 to th- Militan. End- 
neerinq Service (MFS) for cornpleth of civil works. the hGldinc shell wns 
to he handed over hv the MFS in 16 month< nf'er the ksue of administm- 
t h e  approval. In Januarv 1972. MFS mthorifieci indicated t h d  thev wuld 
not agree ta the time-schedule and that completion d shell stwe of Phnse 1 



and Phase IJ works would require 25 months and 29 manths respectively 
from the date of issue of administrative approval. The Committee regret 
the fact that the MES could not be associated by the DGOF while drawing 
up  the time-schedule. The Secretary, ~e fence '  Production conceded dur- 

evidence that it would have been very desirable if at the time of 
purchasing the plar~t itsclf t h y  were in a posision to know precisely the time 
required by colnsulting the engineers concerned. He also informed the 
Committee that in the light of this particular experience his Department 
was evamining how best to streamline the system so as to avoid in future a 
possible disharmon! between the work-calendars assumed hy the two par- 
ties, viz., DGOF and the MES. While regretting that this was not done in 
the present case, the Committee hope that a lesson would he lea~ilt  from 
this evperience and the proc4ure in wch citses worrid be streamlined so 
as to avoid a situation of the n p e  that had devclopcd in this case. 

2.65. A period of more than two years of the delay in com~uissioning 
of these phnts is attributirble to thr. defects noticed in thc 'hlenders'. The 
work on bleaders is stated to have been com~le t e~ t  in Uecrmher 1974 hut 
durinq trstinn in h l ~ r c h  1975. Iraka?es were noticcd which had tct Iw re:& 
fied. The rectifitatory work was c.rrnplc!ed :n Jtrnc rnd October 1976 and 
a t  the end of it a final rlcamncc from Vikram S ~ i h h n l  Smcc Ccn're was 
obtained. The original cost of construction of hleaders was around 
Rs. 2.70 lakhs. The rectificatory work cost Rs. 2.2 lakhs. The reciifica- 
tory work includrd coating of the 1)lcnders with 'epoxy paint'. As the 
cmting is required to be done ~~~~~~~~~~~~. it natrirall! wtwld rdd to the 
maintenance cost of the plant. The Comrnittce have been told that the 
blenders are made of RCC immtead of stet1 and that it was for fhe first time 
that blenders of RCC w-re cons-tructed and experimented with in such a 
big project like this. The Committee would likc the Govwmmrnf to com- 
pare the expendihrc, capital 13s well as maintenmce. on RCC hlenclerc with 
the expenditure that would hnve heen incrrrrcd if the blenders wcre made 
of steel, to find o ~ f  whethw the decision to euperirnenf with hlendcrs made 
of RCC in this project of strafvic imnortanccb was jvstifird. It should :also 
be examined whether on safe4\. consideration\ it wns wor!h~h:le iakinc the 
risk s f  boil&n2 RCC blenders instpad oE: ht-wi~ar( ttrr)se built of steel. The 
Committee would like to he informed about tht* rPsrrlts of the examination. 
The Commitfee understand thab Vikram Sarahhai S n a v  Cen're had rccnm- 
mended certain srfcyrards while puttin2 the b!pnrlw in we. The Com- 
mittee fervently hope that these safecrunrds arc hring fo l los~d.  

2.66. The Committee note that i.1 fcrm\ or fhc mntrart with the sup- 
pliers, the warrantv period$ in r~c i~*rf  nf plant 'X' (onit< 1 nnd 11) :~nd 
plant 'Y' firnit 1) expired ;n Julv 1976 and Trrlv 1977 rcwec.tively. A$ 



these plants were commisbioned in July 1977, the benefits of the warranty 
were not available. The Copunittee ure, however, Lformed that as a spe- 
cial consideration, the suppliers have extended the warranty period upto 
December 1977. Because of what the Secretary, Defence Production, call- 
ed "our special approach" to the suppliers, Government were able to get a 
warranty period of 5 months rnslead of the usual one year from the date 
of commissioning of the plant. I he Commiliee regret that the factory was 
not able to enjoy the normal warranty benefit of one year after the com- 
missioning of the plant precisely because of the delay in commissiouing. 1 

2.67. The warranty period of unit 11 of plant 'Y' is due to expire in 
February 1979. For enjoying the full benefit of one ycor warranty this 
unit should have been commissioned in February 1978. However, the 
unit is at present scheduled to be commissioned from January to May 1980. 
This means that warranty benefits in respect of this unit would not be avail- 
able to the factory at all. This posilion is fraught with danger as in the 
event of any defects noticed during trial runs, commissioning and initial 
working of the unit, no legal remedy would be available against the sup- 
pliers. It is a sad reflection on the poor planning ond listless execution of 
the project. The Committee would like the Department to investigate as 
to how. this situalion has come to deveiup with a view to fixhg responsibi- 
lity, and take such remedial measures as may be possible at this stage. 

2.68. Another field in which blck of perspective planning is discernible 
is the water supply for the plants. The sanction for the project issued in 
July 1973 included a provision for treatment and filteration of water. The 
work agahst this sanction was completed in July 1975. Meanwhile, the 
requirement of water was re-assessed in April 1974 and it wns found that 
in addition to the existing scheme, an additional supply of 27 iakh gallons 
was required. The sanction for the new scheme was sought in Augwt 1971 
and accorded in July 1975. 'lie new scheme was originally scheduled to 
be completed by M I ~  1978. The Committee, however, find that the new 
scheme (comprising of desilting of a lake) is "expected to be completed by 
September 1979". The Department has sought to minimise the implica- 
tions of the delay in the execution of the scheme by stating that the scheme 
"was necessarily independent of the derisicra to procure plants 'X' and 'Y' " 
and that it was "an adequate insurance against dry spells encountered in 
(the area) and to ensure supply of raw water during lean periods.'' Tbe 
Department have, however, in another note furnished to the Committee, 
themselves pointed out that ''the quantum of raw wder available and puri- 
fication facilities wcre/are adequate for phase I when comm~ssioned in July 
1977 and for running the fac!or~ at nhout 50 to 60 per cent of fun c a p -  
city." The Committee regret that the requirements of water were not 
tassessed properly at the time of issue of comprehensive sancfim in 1973. 



'They would Like the Departmen& to enquire into the reasons for the antici- 
paled delay in the completion of the scheme for augmentation of water 
supply of nearly 16 months. 

2.69. Now that the revised target of September 1979 has been laid down 
for the completion of the project, the Committee hope that all efforts would 
be made to complete the work by the target dute. The completion of the 
scheme by the new target of September 1979 assumes added importance in 
the context of commissioning of unit 11 of plant 'Y' scheduled from January 
to May 1980 by which time the availability of water should be adequate to 
enable the phnts being run to optimum capacity. 

2.70. Modernisation of mixed acid system was another scheme forming 
part of the project which was not thought of at the time of projecting the 
proposals for modernisalioa of processes of pmduclion in the factory in 
May 1970. Consequently, 'operational' indents placed by the DGOF on 
the DGS&D in June 1970 did not include the acid mixing @ant. The 
proposal for modernisation oE the acid mixing plant could Inof he mooted 
earlier than 1972. The Department have sought to explain this lack of 
foresight by stating that "even with the best possible planning and techni- 
cal knowledge some unforeseen problems do arise wheaever modernisation 
of a factory, more especially a chemical plant producing diverse set of pro- 
duct mix, is undertaken." The Committee are not convinced and they re- 
gard this as a lapse on the p r t  of the Department. 

2.71. Even aher the idea was mooted in 1972 it took nearly two yecars 
thereafter for tbe contract to be camcluded by the WSBrD. The civil works 
for the plant were completed in January 1976 and the plant was erected 
in May 1976. The justification offered for the delay that "it was neces- 
mry to h v e  preliminary technical discussions/clarifications with the firm 
and select suitable suppliern is not sufficiently convincing. 'lk Commit- 
tee f e d  that by advance planning and energetic action the time taken could 
bave been cdailed and the acid mixing plant could have been erected 
earlier (baa f i y  1976. The Committee hope that the Departmenl of 
Defence Plrodudion will give due deference to the snags highluted in this 
report and so streamline the project planning and execution procedures as 
to make for a synchmnised and coordinated effort leading to planning and 
execation of the projects according to a well hid-out programme. 

New DELHI; 
April 26, 1978. 
v&akitO-6,--i90073 j . 

C. M. STEPHEN, 
Chairman, 

Public Accounts Committee. 



APPENDIV 

Conclusions/Recommendations a .  

---- -- -- -- -- - 
Rec~mmendation S1. Para Ministry Department 

N -I. X?. Concerned -- - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - ----- - 
I 2 

- - -  - 
3 - ---- ---- - -  4 

- - - - - - -- - --- 
I .  I 78 Ministry cf  Defence The Committee note that in February, 1973, a special cell was set up 

,Department c t f  in the Ministry of Defence (Department of Defence Production) to handle 
ProdL'ction) export orders for some specific items of equipment and stores on com- 

mercial basis. This was done in implementation of the decision of the 
Ministry to promote the export of such items, with the intention of utilising 
spare capacity in the ordnance factories and to earn foreign exchange. At 

VI 
a high level meeting held in September, 1973, broad guidelines for under- -I 

taking export of specific defence items were enunciated. The Committee 
were informed during evidence that defence requirements had a tendency 
to fluctuate and sometimes fluctuate ver:r widely. Further, for certain items, 
like the one, dealt with in this Report, a stage had reached, where the de- 
mand for defence had dropped very considerably, calling for some alter- 
native avenues of utilization of the installed capacity either by pickins up 
export orders or by diver4fication of the capacity and skills to produce 
goods for civilian needs so as to improve the econon~ic viabi1it:r of the 
factories and to keep managerial and administrative skills alive so that they 
could be instantaneously pressed into service to produce requirements of 
defence, whenever that picked up again. The Committee appreciate the 
general approach for this important decision. However, the Committee 



- -- -- - - ------ -------- 
1 2 3 4 

-- -- - --- -- - - . -- - - - - . - - -- 
fail to understand as to why no formal detailed directive was issued in 
pursuance and elaboration of the decisions taken at the high level meeting 
held in September, 1973, which according to the Department, themselves 
had enunciated only the broad guiding principles. 

Ministry of Defence The Committee are further distressed to note that detailed procedure for 
(Department of sale of defence stores was laid down only in July, 1975. Had such detail- Defence Pr~ductic~n I 

ed instructions been issued the omissions and commissions that have been 
referred to in the Audit Para would not have perhaps occurred. The Com- 
mittee would like to know as to why the question of laying down detailed 
procedure was not considered essential at the initial stage itself in the light 
of broad guidelines enunciated in September, 1973, particularly when a " 
special cell was in evistence since February, 1973 to handle the export 
orders. 

-do- The Committee note that at the high level meeting held in September, 
1973, in the Ministry of Defence, it was infer alia decided that while agents 
could be appointed to explore the market for export of stores, the final 
deals would be on Government-to-Government basis, and stores in all cases 
despatched direct to the Government concerned. The representative of 
the Ministry confirmed in very explicit terms during evidence that "we have 
been, for some years engaged in exports on a limited scale, on a highly 
selective basis, as discreetly as we can and on a low profile and taking as 
much care as we can, not to get involved and entangled in any areas of con- 
flict or supply to countries which might prove embarrassing to us. ." The 



Committee deem it highly lamentable that in a case of execution of an 
order for export of 35,000 units of stores, the entire deal was struck and 
executed in utter disregard of the aforesaid considerations and the discreet 
and cautious approach enjoined upon in such matters was given a go by. 
That the deviation from the prescribed procedure was not entirely unin- 
tentional is borne out by the fact that the deal was not only concluded in 
entirety with the foreign Agent, but, graver still, no steps were taken to 
ensure that the stores actually reached the intended foreign destination. 

Justifying the correctness of finalizing the entire deal with the foreign 
Agent, the Secretary (Defence Production) pleaded during evidence that 
the same meeting (September, 1973) in which the policy of Government- 
to-Government transaction was enunciated also authorised dealings with 
foreign agents direct, if they were reputable. When the transaction with 
the Agent was really authorised under the original guidelines of September, 
1973, the Committee fail to appreciate the need for obtaining special 
approval from the authorities concerned for this unusual step. On perusal 
of the relevant portion of the record of discussin at the afresaid meeting the 
Committee do not find any such authorization. It speaks only of selection 
of foreign Agents, if they were reputable, for purposes of initiating negotia- 
tions and not for purposes of finalisation of the deal with them. 

The Committee note that initially, the Agent wanted to negotiate the 
export deal for country 'A' but that was not followed. as the country was 
not acceptable. Thereafter, the Agent negotiated the deal for country 'B' 
on the production of an 'end user certificate' from that country, but this 
certificate was rejected because it was not signed at the required level. 
Finally the export deal was finalised for country %'. 

- -  



I 2 3 4 -- 
6. 1.83 rinistry of Defence The Committee were informed during evidence that there,was.not so. 

Depamnent of much concern about the sale of the defence stores but what was of more. 
elcnec Produnion) concern was that they did not get into unapproved hands and as a safe 

guard, production of an 'end-user certificate' had Been prescribed. The 
'end-user certificate' is a written affirmation from the foreign Government 
that the stores are intended for its own exclusive use and would not be 
sold, transferred or diverted without the seller's permission, The Com- 
mittee are surprised to see the lack of seriousness displayed in conducting 
verification of the genuineness and authenticity of the &a1 'end-user certi- 
ficate' from country 'C'. 

-40- Explaining the position about the earlier rejection of the proposal'for 
sale of stores to countries 'A' and 'B', the Secretary (Defence Production) 
stated during evidence that in the case of country 'A' there was 'political 
hesitation' but in the case of country 'B', the end user certificate was not 
acceptable as it was "from a level lower than acceptable". Finally, an 
end-user certificate was received on 23 August, 1975, from the Agent, 
emanating from foreign Government 'C', which did not fi@re in their 
earlier negotiations. The very fact that the Agent was successively naming 
countries and had previously submitted a certificate which was not found 
acceptable, and the final one from a source which had not figured previously 
in the negotiations should have ordinarily cautioned the Government to verify 
the bona fide of the Agent's latest proposal. Even when.the Military Advi- 
ser to one of our High Commissioners had, expressed some doubts at the- 
time of confirming whether the signature on the 'end4.ser certificate' was.; 



genuine or not, the matter was not followed up. Subsequently, when1 
the trade delegation of the country 'C' visiting this countrp 
at that time, stated, "that they were not aware of 
such a transaction or such a need on the part of their country" the doubt, 
should have further strengthened. Yet, the officers responsible for negotiat- 
ing the deal remained completely unperturbed and did not move to investi- 
gate the credentials of the agent and the genuineness of his proposal and 
the authenticity of the end-user certificate furnished by him. The Cornmit- 
tee fail to agree with the contention of the representative of the Ministry. 
that "we had really no means of knowing whether dbcument was forged 
or spurious or not". The unfortunate consequences of this deal could- 
have perhaps been avoided had, at that stage, verification of the end-user 
certificate been made at least this country's Ambassador/diplomat in coun- 
try 'C-a course now proposed to be followed after the sad experience 
in this case. Even the Secretary (Defence Production) himself' during E 
evidence admitted the desirability for such a verification. The Committee 
are amazed to learn from the Secretary (Defence Production) that the 
Government "are not in a position to say ti11 this day" whether the end: 
user certificate produced by the Agent from country 'C' was "spurious or  
otherwise". The Committee are at a loss to understand'as to why it has 
not been found possible thus far to verify the authenticity of the end-user's 
certificate from country 'C'. The Ministry of Defence owe anexplanation- 
to the Committee for this apathy. 

8. 1.85 --do- It was also decided at the high level meeting in Sptember, 1973 that 
"agents commission upto 5 per cent of the f.0.b. price could be paid' 
without the concurrence of the Ministry of Finance (Economic Affairs De-- -- - - -- -- 



partment); commission beyond 5 per cent would require sgkcific approval 
of the Ministry of Finance." The Committee are surprised to learn from 
Audit Paragraph that during the course of negotiations with the Agent, it 
was mutually agreed upon that the transaction would be with the agent 
who would in turn be free to quote its own price to the foreign government. 
This aspect of sale was not brought to the notice of Finance (Defence). 
The Committee feel that a blanket authority to the agent for quoting his own 
price is -in complete contravention of the decision taken in September, 1973 
with regard to the payment of agents' Commission. In fact, this authoriza- 
tion appears to be one of the reasons for prompting the agent to play foul 
in this whole deal culminating in the despatch of stores to country 'A' a 
which was not originally approved of by adopting a devious course of 
action. 

9. I .86 Xiinistry of Defence Apart from the foregoing, the Committee have observed the following 
(Department of 
Defence Production) glaring lapses and omissions and commissions in the case which prove 

beyond doubt the perfunctory approach and indifference to the prescribed 
procedures on the part of the authorities concerned:- 

( i )  Though the 1973 guidelines required the stores to be despatch- 
ed direct to the foreign government concerned, these were actu- 
ally despatched in September, 1975 on f.0.b. basis with bilt 
of lading in favour of the agent's bankers. 

(ii) The shipping documents, which according to the negotiated 
terms were required to be sent to the foreign buyer, were in 



fact handed over to the agent. The Department has n q  been 
able to find from the existing records any explanation for this 
violation of the negotiated terms of agreement. 

(iii) Copies of shipping documents were sent to the foreign govern- 
ment for whom the defence stores were sold to the agent, 4 
weeks after the despatch of stores. This delay facilitated in 
the diversion of stores to a country other than that for which 
they were intended and this country was the same to whom 
the sale of stores were earlier refused on political considera- 
tions. 

The above distressing features of the transaction create an irresistible 
impression in the mind of the Committee that there might have been corn- 
plicity and collusion between the officers responsible for the deal and the s 
agent. The Committee consider that this matter requires a thorough in- 
vestigation with a view to fixing responsibility for the lapses in this case 
and for taking necessary remedial measures for avoiding its recurrence in 
future. 

According to the detailed procedure prescribed by the Ministry of 
Defence on 31st July, 1975, Ministry of Finance were required 
to be consulted with regard to the contractual provisions for 
prices, terms of payment, delivery etc. The prices were 
to be determined with reference to the current estimated cost of pro- 
duction with specific additional provisions for material and labpur escala- 
tion, element of profits etc. The concurrence of the Ministry of Finance 
(Defence) was in this case sought/obtained, ex-post-facto on 26/28 - 



August, 1975 to a unit price of Rs. 710 f.0.b. on the basis of the cost data 
of the basic equipment (without accessories). It was stated that supplies 
would be delivered ex-stock and the stores would be replenished through 
subsequent manufacture. 

12. 1.89 Ministry of Defence The Committee are surprised to learn that according to the calculations 
(Department of made hy Audit, Government had to suffer a huge loss of about Rs. 41.66 
Defence Production) lakhs, being the additional expenditure involved in the manufacture of basic 

equipment alone (for replenishment of stocks) on the basis of estimated 
cost of manufacture for 1976-77. The Secretary (Defence Production), % 
however, explained during evidence that the extent of loss was not to the 
aforesaid extent as the audit's estimate of loss is based on the estimated 
cost of production of Rs. 829 per unit whereas the actual cost has turned 
out to be Rs. 706. According to him, the figure of loss of Ks. 41.66 lakhs 
would come down to about Rs. 24 lakhs on the basis of actual cost of 
production. Further, according to him, in the year 1975-76, to which the 
transaction related the demand on this factory had dropped to 9,092 units 
as against the production level of 45,000 units and the demand for 1976- 
77 got reduced to zero. As such, but for the order in question, there 
would have been a loss of Rs. 36 lakhs on account of non-utilisation of the 
capacity of that factory skill-wise, labour-wise and equipment-wise and if 
the element of interest on the money earned on this particular transaction 
was also added, it would have come to a total amount of Rs. 44 lakhs. ! 



According to the Secretary (Defence Production) the loss of Rs. 24 lakhs 
on the basis of actual cost of production for replenishment purpod would 
have to be viewed against the notional loss of Rs. 44 lakhs if they did not 
have this order and consequently kept the factory idle. The plea advanced 
by the Secretary (Defence Production) for off-setting the actual loss of 
Rs. 24 lakhs by a notional loss of Rs. 44 lakhs due to the possible closure 
of the factory for a year is not acceptable to the Committee in view of the 
fact that export is not the main objective of defence production and the 
question of closure of the ordnance factory was only hypothetical. The 
Committee are astonished that even the Ministry of Finance (Defence) 
accorded their ex-post-facto sanction to the deal disregarding the prescrib 
ed procedures for working out the cost price. 

The Committee are further perturbed to learn that accessories valued 
at Rs. 8.90 lakhs have been supplied with the stores though these were 
not taken into account in the cost data on which the price was based. The 
Secretary (Defence Production) conceded during evidence that there was 
an omission in not taking specific note of the element of accessories. The 
Committee would like that the inquiry suggested by them in paragraph 1.87 
would also cover this costly lapse resulting in a loss of Rs. 8.90 lakhs. 

From the facts placed before the Committee in writing as well as during 
evidence, the Committee cannot help concluding that the project for Moder- 
nisation of Processes of Production in a Factory was ill-planned and its 
execution was not very well coordinated resulting in delays ranging from 
24; months to 30 months in commissioning of various units of the plants and 
exceeding practically the entire warranty period for the plants available 
under the agreements with the suppliers. That there was concurrent loss of 



-- 
production needs hardly be emphasised. Some of the notable features 
which the Committee would like to highlight are indicated in the following 
paragraphs. 

2.61 Ministry of Drfcna. To begin with, the project was estimated, in May, 1970, to cost Rs. 507 
(Dt-ptt. of Dcfcncc Iakhs. This estimate was, according to the Department of Defence Pro- 
Product ion) duction, "only an estimated expenditure for budgetary purpose" which was 

based on "informal budgetary offers obtained from 3 different firms'?. The 
fact that at the time of actual response to tender enquiries the very firms 
from whom the "informal budgetary offers" were obtained quoted a price 
which almost double of what was indicated on initial inquiry, indicates 
the perfunctory manner in which the original estimates were prepared. 2 
The Committee can at this stage only regret the lack of seriousness in pre- 
paring the original estimates for the project. 

Another explanation given for the variation between the initial estimate 
and the final sanction is that whereas the initial estimate was only for plac- 
ing the indent for plants on DGS&D, the final sanction was for actual con- 
tract price of the plants, fuller details of civil works, erection and commis- 
sioning costs, utilisation and acid mixing facilities. That the final sanction 
should be for an amount almost double of the initial estimate is a sad 
reflection on project estimation. 

The contract for the procurement of plants was concluded in Novem- 
ber, 1971 but the sanction for the project as a whole was accorded in July, 
1973. Thus, it took the Department of Defence Production nearly 18 



months to collect the necessary details for accurding sanction. The Com- 
mittee consider this as an unduly long period. They feel that if the saac- 
tion could have been issued earlier, the civil works would have started 
earlier and the Department would not have found itself in the no& 
happy predicament whereunder the execution of the project had to be 
spilled over the warranty period fixed for the plants. 

According to the time schedule drawn up by the Director General, 
Ordnance Factories and given in December, 1971 to the Military Eogineer- 
ing Service (MES) for completion of civil works, the building shell WM 
to be handed over by the MES in 16 months after the issue d ndministra- 
tive approval. In January, 1972, MES authorities indicated that tbey could 
not agree to the time-schedule and that completion of sheli stage of Phase 
I and Phase I1 works would require 25 months and 29 months respectively 3 
from the date of issue of administrative approval. The Committee regret 
the fact that the MES could not be associated by the DGOF while drawing 
up the time-schedule. The Secretary, Defence Production conceded during 
evidence that it would have been very desirable if at the time of purchasing 
the plant itself they were in a position to know precisely the time required 
by consulting the engineers concerned. He also informed the Committee 
that in the light of this particular experience his Department was examin- 
ing how best to streamline the system so as to avoid in future a po6d'Me 
disharmony between the work-calendars assumed by the two parties, vit.. 
DGOF and the MES. While regretting that tbis was not done in the 
present case, the Committee hope that a lesson would be learnt from thk 
experience and the procedure in such cases would be streamlined so as to 
avoid a situation of the type that had developed in this case. - 



19. 2.65 Ministry of Defence A period of more than two years of the delay in commissioning of these 
Deptt. of Defence plants is attributable to the defects noticed in the 'blenders'. The work on 

!? roduct ion) blenders is stated to have been completed in December, 1974 but during 
testing in March, 1975, leakages were noticed which had to be rectified. 
The rectificatory work was completed in June and October, 1976 and at the 
end of it a final clearance from Vikram Sarabhai Space Centre was obtained. 
The original cost of construction of blenders was around Rs. 2.70 lakhs. 
The rectificatory work cost Rs. 2.2 lakhs. The rectiticatory work included 
coating of the blenders with 'epoxy paint'. As the coating is required to be 
done periodically it naturally would add to the maintenance cost of the 
plant. The Committee have been told that the blenders are made of RCC 
instead of steel and that it was for the first time that blenders of RCC 2 
were constructed and experimented with in such a big project like this. 
The Committee would like the Government to compare the expenditure, 
capital as well as maintenance, on RCC blenders with the expenditure that 
would have been incurred if the blenders were made of steel, to find out 
whether the decision to experiment with blenders made of RCC in this 
project of strategic importance was justified. It should also be examined 
whether on safety considerations it was worthwhile taking the risk of build- 
ing RCC blenders instead of having those built of steel. The Committee 
would like to be informed about the results of the examination. The Com- 
mittee understand that Vikram Sarabhai Space Centre had recommended 
certain safeguards while putting the blenders in use. The Committee fer- 
vently hope that these safeguards are being followed. 

t 



The Committee note that in terms of the contract with the suppliers, 
the warranty periods in respect of plant 'X' (unit I and II) and plant 'Y' 
(unit I )  expired in July, 1976 and July, 1977 respectively. As these plants 
were commissioned in July, 1977, the benefits of the warranty were not 
available. The Committee are, however, informed that as a special consi- 
deration, the suppliers have extended the warranty period upto December, 
1977. Because of what the Secretary, Defence Production, called "our 
special approach" to the suppliers, Government were able to get a warranty 
period of 5 months instead of the usual one year from the date of com- 
missioning of the plant. The Committee regret that the factory was not 
able to enjoy the normal warranty benefit of one year after the commission- 
ing of the plant precisely because of the delay in commissioning. 

The warranty period of unit I1 of plant 'Y' is due to expire in February, 
1979. For enjoying the full benefit of one year warranty this unit should 
have been commissioned in February, 1978. However, the unit is at present 3 
scheduled to be commissioned from January to May, 1980. This means 
that warranty benefits in respect of this unit would not be available to 
the factory at all. This position is fraught with danger as 
in the even of any defects noticed during trial runs, commission- 
ing rind initial working of the unit, no legal remedy would be available 
;~gilinst the suppliers. It is a sad reflection on the poor planning and listless - 
executinn of the project. The Committee would like the Department to 
investigate as to how his situation has come to develop with a view to . 
fixing responsibility, and take such remedial measures as may be possible 
at this stage. 

22. 2.68 -do- Another field in which lack of perspective planning is discernible is the 
water supply for the plants. The sanction for the project issued in July, 

i - - -. .- * _ _  _--_ - - -- - - _  - -- 
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1973 included a provision for treament and filteration of water. The work 
against this sanction was completed in July, 1975. Meanwhile, the re 
quirement of water was re-assessed in April, 1974 and it was found that in 
addition to the existing scheme, an additional supply of 27 lakh gallons was 
required. The sanction for the new scheme was sought in August, 1974 
and accorded in July, 1975. The new scheme was originally scheduled to 
be completed by May, 1978. The Committee, however, find that the new 
scheme (cornpriqing of desilting of a lake) is "expected to be completed 
by September. 1969". The Department has sought to minimise the impli- 
cations of the delay in the execution of the scheme by stating that the 
schcmc "was ncccssarily independent of the decision to procure 
plants 'X' and 'Y"' and it was "an adequate insurance 2 
against dry spclls encountered in. . . . . . (the area) and to ensure supply of 
raw water during lean periods." Thc Department have, however, in another 
note furnished to the Committee, themselves pointed out that "the quantum 
of raw water available and purification facilities were/are adequate for 
phase 1 when commissioned in July. 1977 and for running the factory at 
about SO to 60 per cent of full capacity." The Committee regret that the 
requirements of water were not assessed properly at the time of issue of 
cornprchensive sanction in 1973. They would like the Rpartrnent to en- 
quire into the reasons for the anticipated delay in the completion of the 
scheme for au-mentation of water supply of nearly 16 months. 

23. 2.69 hiinistry of Defence Now. that the revised target of September, 1979 has been laid down 
(Deptt. of Defence for the completion of the proiect, the Committee hope that all efforts would 
Production) 
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May, 1976. The Committee hope that the Depament of. Defence Pro-- 
duction will give due deference to the snags highlighted in this report an& 
so streamline the project planning and execution ~ ~ O C ~ ~ U F ~ S  as to make for 
a synchronised and coordinated effort leading to planning and execution of. 
the projects according to a well laid-out programme.. 




